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02/ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

STATEMENT BY  
THE CHAIRMAN  

IN 2016 THE PORT OF 
TYNE HAS PERFORMED 
WELL ACROSS ALL OF 
ITS BUSINESS AREAS, 
WITH THE EXCEPTION 
OF CONVENTIONAL AND 
BULK CARGOES WHICH 
HAVE BEEN ADVERSELY 
IMPACTED BY THE 
DRAMATIC REDUCTION 
IN IMPORTED COAL 
VOLUMES ACROSS THE 
UK DURING THE PAST 
THREE YEARS.

Port of Tyne coal volumes adversely 
impacted the overall financial performance, 
and profitability of the business in 2016.  
The Port, however, is in a strong position to 
recover from the decline in coal handling as 
construction of new multi-million pound 
wood pellet handling and storage facilities for 
Lynemouth Power Ltd (LPL) is well underway 
and due for commissioning in the second 
half of 2017. Associated volumes are 
anticipated to be in excess of 1.8 million 
tonnes per annum over an agreement period 
of ten years.

The business will also be in a position to 
benefit from the investment made in 
extending its main operational Riverside 
Quay, which when commissioned will be 
nearly 1 kilometre in length. The Port is also 
well-placed to accommodate expansion 
opportunities having two large sites each 
having Enterprise Zone status, available for 
development.

Activity at the Port’s three car terminals has 
remained strong and the business has 
retained its position as the UK’s No. 2 
exporting port.

During the year, a record number of 
passengers used the Port’s International 
Passenger Terminal as a result of a record 
number of cruise ships visiting the Port.

The Port continued to invest heavily in the 
development of infrastructure with nearly 
£15 million allocated to secure business 
opportunities and to improve operational 
efficiency. This included investment in 
state-of-the-art quayside unloading and 
conveying equipment for the LPL project, 
extending car terminal storage capacity for 
Nissan by 10 acres, taking its footprint to 80 
acres, and expenditure relating to the final 
phases of the extension to Riverside Quay, 
due for completion in 2017.

In November 2016 the Port of Tyne applied 
for planning permission for Howdon Green 
Energy Park; a 25MgW energy recovery 
facility - these plans, which received 
planning approval in Spring 2017, offer the 
potential to bring Howdon Yard back into 
use, generating economic benefits, creating 
new jobs and presenting a significant 
opportunity to further diversify the business 
sustaining the future development and 
vibrancy of the Port of Tyne.

The performance of the Port in 2016 had a 
significant impact on the economy of the 
North East region. The annual assessment 
by consultants Arup shows that the Gross 
Value Added (GVA) by the Port to the region 
was £678 million, with 13,775 full-time jobs 
supported directly or indirectly by the Port. 
The Port’s International Passenger Terminal 
continued to contribute over £51 million to 
the GVA, supporting the travel and tourism 
sector in particular.

The Port re-invests all profits for the benefit 
of its stakeholders. In 2016, £25 million was 
returned in benefit to these stakeholder 
groups during the year. This includes the 
annual donation of 1% of profits to the Port 
of Tyne Community Action Fund at the 
Community Foundation Tyne & Wear and 
Northumberland which supports projects 
that help young people, enhance community 
activity, or make environmental 
improvements.

I am very pleased to report that some of the 
Port’s main health and safety indicators 
improved again during the year, with the 
number of injuries recorded decreasing and 
the level of reported near-misses rising - the 
latter being viewed as demonstrating 
continuing positive change in culture and 
behaviour, supported by all our employees. 
Other highlights included maintaining the 
internationally recognised Health and Safety 
standard OHSAS: 18001 and achieving the 
Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents 
(RoSPA) Gold Award for the third year in 
succession.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT/03

Following the restructure of the organisation 
announced in 2015 and its subsequent 
implementation, it is a tribute to the 
employees that the Port maintained its IIP 
Gold standard and retained the IIP 
Champion status for a second year. They are 
to be commended for their continued 
commitment to major organisational and 
cultural transformation.

As always, there are uncertainties and 
challenges ahead, but I am sure they will 
continue to support the strategies we have 
outlined to ensure any challenges are 
overcome, and new opportunities are won, 
enabling the Port to continue its already 
significant support to the local economy, 
industry and trade of the North East region 
and UK plc.

I would like to pay tribute to Dr Jon 
Hargreaves the Port’s Deputy Chairman who 
died in October. Jon joined the Port’s Board 
in 2010, becoming Deputy Chairman in 
2014. He made an enormous contribution to 
the growth and development of the Port and 
his unwavering enthusiasm, energy, and 
support is greatly missed by everyone at the 
Port.

My thanks also go to Alan Rutherford who 
has retired from the board after serving for 
six years. His experience and 
entrepreneurial spirit made a huge 
contribution to the Board.

We welcomed a new Non-Executive Director, 
Steve Crosland, to the Board in 2016 and 
Duncan Barrie joined as Chief Financial 
Officer, replacing Marie Glanville who left 
during the year.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank 
all of our stakeholders, and particularly our 
employees, for their hard work, commitment 
and support, and the contribution they have 
made to the continued development of the 
Port of Tyne as we look forward to 2017 and 
beyond.

Hilary P Florek, BA (Hons) 
Chairman

29 March 2017

“ AS ALWAYS, THERE 
ARE UNCERTAINTIES 
AND CHALLENGES 
AHEAD, BUT I AM SURE 
THEY WILL CONTINUE 
TO SUPPORT THE 
STRATEGIES WE HAVE 
OUTLINED TO ENSURE 
ANY CHALLENGES ARE 
OVERCOME, AND NEW 
OPPORTUNITIES ARE 
WON.”

x177070_POT_p3_nm.indd   3 25/04/2017   09:47



04/ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

STATEMENT BY  
THE CHIEF  
EXECUTIVE OFFICER
TOTAL RIVER TYNE 
CARGO VOLUMES 
CONTINUED TO BE 
IMPACTED BY THE 
DRAMATIC REDUCTION 
IN IMPORTED COAL 
VOLUMES ACROSS 
THE UK, WHICH HAVE 
FALLEN FROM A PEAK 
OF 50 MILLION TONNES 
IN 2013 TO UNDER 10 
MILLION TONNES IN 
2016.

This change is due to the structural shift 
away from coal-fired electricity power 
generation, lower prices of alternative fuels 
such as gas and oil, less demand due to 
weather conditions and the build-up of coal 
stock levels.

Reflective of this, River Tyne coal import 
volumes have also fallen, from a peak of 
nearly 5.0 million tonnes in 2013 to zero in 
2016. As a result, total River Tyne cargo 
volumes have fallen from a high of 8.1 
million tonnes in 2013, to 3.7 million tonnes 
in 2016, representing a 27% reduction 
compared to 2015.

Whilst the Port delivered a positive 
performance across its Car Terminals, 
Cruise and Ferry, Logistics and Estates 
business areas, the overall financial results 
have been adversely impacted by the loss of 
imported coal and to a much lesser extent a 
reduction in wood pellet imports in the year.

As a result of these lower volumes, turnover 
decreased by 22% to £45.9 million from 
£58.8 million in 2015. Comparative 
profitability is complicated by the 
exceptional coal costs incurred in 2015. 
Whilst operating profit for the year increased 
by 33%, to £0.8 million as the impact of 
lower turnover was more than offset by 
exceptional non-recurring costs in 2015. 
Reported Profit before Tax was £3.7 million 
(2015: £6.0 million) including a positive 
movement in the valuation of investment 
property of £3.8 million (2015: £6.5 million).

A total of 2.0 million tonnes was handled by 
the Conventional and Bulk Cargo business 
area in 2016 compared to 3.5 million 
tonnes in the previous year. As referred to 
already, coal was the main contributor to 
the decrease, falling by 1.4 million tonnes, 
together with wood pellet volumes which 
declined by 0.4 million tonnes as other 
facilities in the country came on line.

The number of cars handled across the 
Port’s three car terminals, that provide 
facilities for Nissan, VW / Audi and Höegh, 
was slightly up on the previous year at 594k 
units. The volume of Nissan exports 
remained strong and as a result the 
business retained its position as the UK’s 
No. 2 car exporting port.

There has been a continued increase in the 
number of passengers using the Port’s 
International Passenger Terminal including 
both the daily Newcastle to Amsterdam 
route, operated by DFDS Seaways, and by a 
growing number of cruise operators calling 
at the Port. 675k passengers travelled 
through the terminal, an increase of 40k 
(6%) on 2015, including 585k ferry 
passengers, and a record 90k cruise 
passengers on the 44 cruise ships that 
visited the Port in 2016.

Within the Logistics business area, 
(comprising containers, warehousing and 
distribution), container volumes recovered 
to 53k TEUs (Twenty Foot Equivalent units), 
an increase of 13% on 2015 volumes.

Although the overall volume of cargoes 
handled in the year decreased, as did the 
number of vessel movements, which fell 
slightly to 2,796, the gross tonnage of ships 
entering the River Tyne increased by 8% to 
27.8 million tonnes, reflecting the continued 
global shift to larger vessels experienced 
within the marine sector.

The Port invested £14.6 million during the 
year in the further development of 
infrastructure to enable business 
opportunities and improve operational 
efficiency. The largest items were an £8.8m 
investment in the Lynemouth Power wood 
pellet handling project, and £2.1 million of 
expenditure relating to the final phases of 
the extension to Riverside Quay, the Port’s 
main operational quay, due for completion 
in 2017.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT/05

Following the restructuring of the 
organisation that was announced in 2015 
and subsequently implemented, the average 
number of full time equivalent positions, 
comprising direct and contracted 
employees, including apprenticeships, 
reduced by 11%, to 471 (2015: 529). At the 
end of the year the comparable figure was 
437 (2015: 483).

Health and Safety for employees and 
visitors to the Port is of paramount 
importance and the business continues to 
embed the principle that all accidents are 
preventable. The Port’s Profit Share 
Scheme, which includes targets designed to 
reduce the number of injuries, has been 
successful in contributing to the associated 
falling trend that has been achieved.

The Port takes its commitment to all 
stakeholders very seriously and has 
continued to support to local communities 
through community grants and sponsorship. 
It also plays a significant role in North East 
business and public affairs, contributing to 
and supporting the economic growth of the 
region and the UK economy.

Overall the Port has maintained its already 
significant contribution to the regional 
economy with the ongoing support of 
partners, customers, employees and other 
stakeholders.

“ THE PORT INVESTED 
£14.6 MILLION 
DURING THE YEAR 
IN THE FURTHER 
DEVELOPMENT OF 
INFRASTRUCTURE TO 
ENABLE BUSINESS 
OPPORTUNITIES AND 
IMPROVE OPERATIONAL 
EFFICIENCY.”
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06/ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
CONTINUED... 

THE BUSINESS
The Port is focused and organised around 
five business areas: Conventional and Bulk 
Cargoes, Car Terminals, Cruise and Ferry, 
Logistics and Estates. Its principal activities 
are the provision of cargo and passenger 
handling and storage and distribution 
services.

Services are provided using a mixture of 
in-house and out-sourced resources 
reflective of both commercial flexibility and 
cost-effectiveness.

The Port has statutory responsibility for 
conservancy and safe navigation of a 22 
mile stretch of water, comprising 19 miles of 
river from Wylam to the piers, and 3 miles of 
sea outside the piers.

The Port of Tyne is accountable to its 
stakeholders, who are its customers 
(including all river users), employees, 
Government, the business community and 
the local community. As a trust port, profits 
are re-invested back into the business for 
the benefit of stakeholders.

MISSION, VISION, AND VALUES
The mission of the business is to create a 
vibrant and sustainable Port of Tyne for the 
benefit of the national and regional 
economy and to ensure that the Port is 
handed on in a better condition to future 
generations.

The vision of the Port is to be a £100 million 
business, recognised for outstanding 
customer service and being a great place to 
work, where employees are highly engaged 
and share in the success of the 
organisation.

The Port’s values are based upon Customer 
Focus, People Focus, and Future Focus. 

This reflects the importance placed on 
understanding the needs of customers and 
identifying where value can be added to 
mutual benefit, recognising the vital role of 
people within the organisation and training, 
developing and rewarding all who work for 
the Port in a challenging, supportive and safe 
environment and investing in the long-term 
future and sustainability of the Port. 

PORT OF TYNE STRUCTURE, 
RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
GOVERNANCE
The Port of Tyne encompasses three 
principal trading entities: the Port of Tyne 
Authority and two wholly owned 
subsidiaries, Port of Tyne Distribution 
Limited and Tyne Logistics Company 
Limited. It also owns 50% of Port of Tyne 
Wood Pellet Limited, a joint venture formed 
to pursue wood pellet handling opportunities 
which did not trade in the year.

Further to and in accordance with the 
publication by the Department for Transport 
of ‘Modernising Trust Ports II’, in 2009, the 
Port reviewed its corporate structure.  
The Port stated in 2010 that it intended  
to continue its business development 
strategies through the trust port model 
whilst keeping others under review.  
The Department accepted this ongoing 
strategic position.

During 2016, subsequent to a further 
review, the Department for Transport 
published ‘Trust Port Study: Key Findings 
and Recommendations’ which focussed 
upon governance, stakeholder interaction 
and regular review of the suitability of the 
trust port model.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT/07

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover during the year fell by 22% from 
£58.8 million in 2015, to £45.9 million in 
2016, mainly due to lower volumes of coal 
handled and, to a much lesser extent, lower 
volumes of wood pellet.

As a result, 2016 EBITDA (before exceptional 
items) decreased to £6.7 million compared 
with £13.3 million in 2015; 2015 EBITDA 
(after exceptional items) was £9.2 million. 
However, operating profit after exceptional 
items increased by 32% to £0.8 million as 
the impact of lower turnover in 2016 was 
more than offset by 2015 exceptional items, 
relating to organisational restructuring and 
coal asset write-downs, which have not 
re-occurred in 2016.

Profit before Tax was £3.7 million (2015: 
£6.0 million) including a positive movement 
in the valuation of investment property of 
£3.8 million (2015: £6.5 million).

Net cash inflow from operations was £0.3 
million compared to £18.4 million in the 
previous year, due to adverse movements in 
working capital mainly as a result of a 
reduction in creditors.

The Port invested £14.6 million during the 
year in the development of infrastructure to 
enable business opportunities and improve 
operational efficiency. The largest items were 
an £8.8m investment in the Lynemouth 
Power wood pellet handling project, and £2.1 
million of expenditure relating to the final 
phases of the extension to Riverside Quay, 
the Port’s main operational quay, due for 
completion in 2017.

Net borrowings increased by £15.7 million to 
£36.2 million at the end of 2016. This was a 
consequence of the continued high level of 
capital expenditure required to grow 
infrastructure and capability, and to facilitate 
the associated future income growth from 
incremental wood pellet handling.

Net assets remained at £116m at the end of 
the year, with the increase in the value of 
investment properties within tangible fixed 
assets offsetting the increase in pension 
liability.

Turnover by business area highlights positive 
year on year movement in three of the Port’s 
five business areas with Car Terminals, 
Cruise and Ferry and Estates revenues all 
growing but being more than offset by the 
reduction in Conventional and Bulk cargoes 
resulting from changes in coal and wood 
pellet volumes previously described.

** Income from third party activities primarily consists of conservancy and pilotage income 
associated with traffic emanating from third party river users. Income from these sources 
attributable to the Port’s five main business areas has been allocated accordingly.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS  

2016  
(£m)

2015 
(£m)

Change  
(£m)

Change  
(%)

Turnover 45.9 58.8 (12.9) (22%)

EBITDA 6.7 9.2* (2.5) (27%)

Operating Profit 0.8 0.6 0.2 33%

Profit before Tax 3.7 6.0 (2.3) (38%)

Profit after Tax 3.4 5.6 (2.2) (39%)

Cash flow from operating activities 0.3 18.4 (18.1) (98%)

Capital expenditure 14.6 21.2 (6.6) (31%)

Net borrowings 36.2 20.5 (15.7) (77%)

Net assets 116.0 116.0 0.0 -

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS AREA  

2016  
(£m)

2015 
(£m)

Change  
(£m)

Change  
(%)

Conventional and Bulk Cargo 12.3 25.1 (12.8) (51%) 

Car Terminals 7.6 7.2 0.4 6%

Cruise and Ferry 3.2 2.6 0.6 23% 

Logistics 17.9 18.0 (0.1) (1%) 

Estates 3.0 2.8 0.2 7% 

44.0 55.7 (11.7) (21%)

Income from third party activities** 1.9 3.1 (1.2) (39%)

Total 45.9 58.8 (12.9) (22%)

*(after exceptional costs of £4.1m)
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CARGO AND  
PASSENGER VOLUMES
Port of Tyne owned berths, operated either 
directly or by third parties, continue to 
account for most of the cargo handled by 
businesses located on the banks of the 
river. In 2016, 89% of all river cargo 
tonnage was either loaded or discharged at 
Port of Tyne owned berths. The total 
tonnage of all cargoes handled across River 
Tyne berths decreased by 27% to 3.7 
million tonnes in 2016, mainly due to the 
reduction in the volume of imported coal.

The table outlines the level of activity 
relating to the Port’s five business areas in 
metrics that are relevant to the performance 
of each.

Conventional and Bulk cargoes fell by 44% 
to 2.0 million tonnes. Coal volumes reduced 
from 1.4 million tonnes in 2015 to zero, 
wood pellet volumes of 1.1 million tonnes 
represented a reduction of 0.4 million 
tonnes, new aggregate products were at 0.3 
million tonnes, and 0.6 million tonnes of 
scrap metals, grain and board products 
were handled.

The total volume of cars recorded was 
594k, 13k (2%) more than in 2015. Nissan 
volumes were up by 34k to 459k, whilst the 
volume of cars handled through the VW and 
Höegh Northern Transhipment Terminal 
were slightly lower than in the previous year.

675k passengers travelled through the Port 
of Tyne International Passenger Terminal, 
up 6% on 2015. Cruise passenger numbers 
almost doubled during the year, increasing 
by 88% from 48k to 90k, as a result of the 
record 44 cruise ships that visited the Port 
in 2016. DFDS ferry passenger numbers 
remained strong, at 585k, only 2k behind 
the record numbers reported in 2015.

Within the Logistics business area, 
(comprising containers, warehousing and 
distribution), container volumes recovered to 
53k TEUs (Twenty Foot Equivalent units), an 
increase of 13% on 2015 volumes.

08/ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
CONTINUED... 

TOTAL RIVER TYNE TONNAGES (000’S)

2016  2015 Change  Change  
(%)

Port of Tyne berths 3,251 4,608 (1,357) (29%)

3rd party berths 403 387 16 4% 

Total 3,654 4,995 (1,341) (27%)

PORT OF TYNE BUSINESS AREA STATISTICS

2016  2015 Change  Change  
(%)

Conventional and Bulk  
Cargoes (tonnes 000’s)

1,970 3,535 (1,565) (44%)

Car Terminals (number of cars 000’s) 594 581 13 2%

Cruise and Ferry  
(passenger numbers 000’s)

Broken down by: 

- Cruise 
- Ferry

675

 
90 

585

635

 
48 

587

40

 
42  
(2)

6%

 
88% 

-

Cruise and Ferry (vessel numbers)

Broken down by: 

- Cruise 
- Ferry

388

44 
344 

361

30 
331

27

14 
13

7%

47% 
4%

Logistics (containers – TEU 000’s) 53 47 6 13%
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DREDGING ACTIVITY
Maintenance dredging of the River Tyne in 
2016 was at a level consistent with the prior 
year. All material removed from the estuary 
as part of the maintenance dredging regime 
was deposited at sea in accordance with 
licence conditions.

The activity undertaken during the year to 
maintain depths by the Port of Tyne’s 
plough dredger, the Sir Bobby Robson, 
helped reduce the requirement to remove 
sediment from the river, both in the channel 
and at Port of Tyne berths. No capital 
dredging occurred on the river during the 
year.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT/09

RIVER TRAFFIC
Vessel gross tonnage is a metric that reflects 
the overall scale of port activity and 
measures both the size of vessels and the 
cargo capacity they can carry. Total River 
Tyne vessel gross tonnage increased by 8% 
in 2016 to 27,803k tonnes, whilst the total 
number of vessel movements at 2,796, 
were similar to those seen in 2015.

*The above figures exclude movements associated with dredging vessels

RIVER TYNE VESSEL MOVEMENTS

2016  2015 Change  Change  
(%)

River Tyne vessel movements 
(units)*

2,796 2,816 (20) (1%)

River Tyne arrivals gross tonnage (000s)

Port of Tyne berths 26,414 24,058 2,356 10%

3rd party berths 1,389 1,653 (264) (16%) 

27,803 25,711 2,092 8% 

River Tyne pilotage acts (units) 1,600 1,780 (180) (10%)

CUBIC METRES DREDGED FROM THE RIVER TYNE (000’S)

Maintenance dredging: 2016 2015  Change  Change  
(%)

Port of Tyne berths 42 34 8 24%

3rd party berths 163 193 (30) (16%)

Channel 164 127 37 29% 

369  354 15 4%

Capital dredging - 117 (117) (100%)

*The above figures exclude movements associated with dredging vessels

x177070_POT_p3_nm.indd   9 25/04/2017   09:47



10/ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

ECONOMIC IMPACT
The impact of the Port of Tyne on the 
regional economy is measured annually 
through an Economic Impact Assessment 
conducted by external consultants Arup.

Their report showed that the Gross Value 
Added (GVA) by the Port to the regional 
economy was £678 million (2015: £710 
million).

The Port’s International Passenger Terminal, 
facilitating the daily DFDS Seaways 
Newcastle to Amsterdam ferry service and 
visiting cruise ships, contributed £51 million 
to the GVA (2015: £50.5 million) to the 
tourism sector.

STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
CONTINUED... 

STAKEHOLDER BENEFIT

2016 
£000’s  

2015 
£000’s  

Change  
£000’s

Change  
%

Government

Taxation - Pay As You Earn 2,990 3,401 (411) (12%)

National insurance 2,920 3,165 (245) (8%)

Corporate tax 227 287 (60) (21%)

Business rates 931 322 609 189%

7,068 7,175 (107) (1%) 

Local community

Port of Tyne Community Action Fund 20 102 (82) (80%)

Sponsorship of local events  
and activities 114 204 (90) (44%)

Swing Bridge maintenance costs 37 42 (5) (12%)

North Shields Fish Quay Co.  
rental support 30 30 - -

Waived conservancy charges to  
Royal Navy ships 1 4 (3) (75%)

202 382 (180) (47%)

Employees

Remuneration (including profit share) 16,099 17,713 (1,614) (9%)

Pension cost 1,221 1,453 (232) (16%)

Social events 17 16 1 6%

17,337 19,182 (1,845) (10%)

Business community

Subscriptions to  
business organisations 65 59 6 10%

Total 24,672 26,798 (2,126) (8%)
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT/11

STAKEHOLDER BENEFIT
The Port of Tyne’s stakeholders are its 
customers, employees, the Government, the 
business community and the local 
community. The total benefit delivered to 
the Port’s stakeholders in 2016 was £24.7 
million, a decrease of 8% (2015: £26.8 
million), mainly as a result of employment 
costs (taxation, national insurance, 
remuneration and pension costs) associated 
with the reduction in employee numbers.

The Port has again evaluated the impact  
of investment made in community 
engagement using the London 
Benchmarking Group metrics.  
The assessment undertaken during the year 
relating to the investment made in 2015  
was compared with that of 104 national 
companies from 12 different sectors. This 
indicated that the Port supported 413 
organisations (2014: 566), directly engaging 
with over 620k people (2014: 600k) across 
the North East region. As a result, the Port 
of Tyne remained in the top 10% of 
companies with respect to overall 
contribution to community as a percentage 
of pre-tax profits, which for 2014 was just 
under 11%.

Benefit provided to Government includes 
taxes and business rates paid to national 
and local government. £7.1 million (2015: 
£7.2 million) was generated in tax receipts 
for the Government relating to employee 
taxation, company taxation and business 
rates.

Local community benefit totalled £0.2 
million (2015: £0.4 million). This included 
the annual donation of 1% (£20k) of 2015 
Profit before Tax, (adjusted to exclude 
non-cash items relating to the movement in 
investment property valuations and fixed 
asset impairments), to the Port of Tyne 
Community Action Fund at the Community 
Foundation Tyne & Wear and 
Northumberland, which was distributed via 
an employee panel to nine community 
projects.

Other local community benefits included 
sponsorship of locally organised cultural, 
sport, business and community events, the 
maintenance of the Swing Bridge, (which is 
a scheduled ancient monument and not a 
commercially viable asset on a stand-alone 
basis), rental support for the North Shields 
Fish Quay Company and the waiving of 
conservancy charges to Royal Navy vessels 
that are open to the public.

A number of local community benefits 
classed as ‘in kind’, such as Port tours, river 
safety cover for fund-raising events and staff 
volunteering, whilst not included in the 
above figures, are all of significant value to 
the groups concerned.

Total employee stakeholder benefit was 
£17.3 million (2015: £19.2 million) made up 
of remuneration and employer contributions 
to pension schemes together with a 
programme of personal development 
opportunities, health and wellbeing 
initiatives and staff benefits.

The Port continued to invest and actively 
participate in the business community 
through membership of key regional and 
sector business representative organisations 
such as the Confederation of British 
Industry, the British Ports’ Association, the 
North East England Chamber of Commerce, 
the Engineering Employers’ Federation and 
NewcastleGateshead Initiative.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Since 2015 the Port has held the 
internationally recognised Health and Safety 
standard OHSAS: 18001 which places 
emphasis on health and safety system 
management, awareness, reporting, incident 
investigations and training.

The Port continued to implement new 
initiatives to help change both the behaviour 
and culture of employees to improve Health 
and Safety performance and this helped the 
Port achieve the Royal Society for the 
Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) Gold Award 
for the third year in succession.

The Port’s Profit Share Scheme, which 
includes targets designed to reduce the 
number of injuries, appears to have been 
successful in contributing to the fall in the 
number of employee injuries which 
decreased to 35 (2015: 40).

Disappointingly, five of the injuries (2015: 3) 
were reportable to the Health and Safety 
Executive under the Reporting of Injuries, 
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 
Regulations 2013, as they involved an 
absence from work of more than seven days. 
The resulting Reportable Injuries per 100 
employees was 1.09 (2015: 0.6), which 
compares favourably to the most recently 
available (1.38) sector statistic published by 
the Port Skills and Safety (PSS) organisation 
in 2015.

Whilst the level of reported near misses, 
which is viewed as a positive indicator, 
increased to 75% of all incidents (2015: 
74%), the number of lost time injuries 
increased slightly to 10 (2015: 9) and the 
total number of working days lost increased 
to 170 days (2015: 120).
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MARINE SAFETY
All Marine Services activities are required to 
comply with the Health and Safety standard 
OHSAS: 18001. The Port also adheres to the 
guidelines of the Port Marine Safety Code 
(PMSC) which was initially published in 
2012, and updated in 2016. It was 
developed to improve safety in UK ports and 
to enable Harbour Authorities to manage 
marine operations to nationally agreed 
standards against which they can be 
measured. The Code requires an effective 
Marine Safety Management System (MSMS) 
to be adopted, based on formal risk 
assessments, outlines the duties of Board 
members, officers and key personnel in 
relation to safety and navigation, and 
summarises the main statutory duties and 
powers of Harbour Authorities.

The Port’s ongoing compliance with the Code 
is assured by the operation and audit, both 
internal and external, of the Port’s MSMS, 
which is integral to the business’s overall 
safety management system.

The pilotage services operated by the Port 
have maintained the International Standard 
for Maritime Pilot Organisations accreditation 
since 2013. The standard assures the 
highest levels of safety, skills, knowledge and 
expertise associated with the delivery of 
pilotage services. Following an external audit 
in 2016, this accreditation was renewed and 
the Port remains one of only 18 organisations 
holding the standard worldwide.

STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
CONTINUED... 

ENVIRONMENT
In 2016 the Port’s environmental 
management system was re-certified to 
ensure the standards of ISO: 14001 have 
been maintained. This standard 
demonstrates compliance with relevant 
environmental legislation, a commitment to 
the prevention of pollution and the 
implementation of a programme of continual 
improvement and environmental monitoring.

There was a significant improvement in the 
number of environmental incidents during 
the year which reduced by almost half, to 
60 (2015:112), as a result of the 
implementation of improved operational 
dust control measures.

The number of complaints also reduced by 
almost half, to 24 (2015: 43), again this is 
mainly attributable to better control of dust 
generating cargo handling activities. 75% of 
the complaints received related to noise 
arising from port operations, primarily in 
relation to scrap handling activities and the 
significant construction projects which were 
ongoing during the year. The remainder 
were associated with dust releases.

Work to reduce CO2 emissions from the 
Port, and save energy, continued with the 
installation of LED lighting in a number of 
port buildings and warehouses.

The Clean Tyne Project, undertaken with 
Newcastle, North Tyneside and Gateshead 
local authorities, continued in 2016. The 
Clearwater, the vessel operated by the Port, 
was deployed to ensure the river remained 
clear of floating debris.

The Port has continued to play a leading 
role in the River Tyne Sediments Group 
(RTSG) whose objective is to measure the 
extent, source and movement of heavy 
metal contaminated sediment in the River 
Tyne and to identify, agree and implement 
management solutions. The partners 
include Newcastle City Council, Gateshead 
Council, North Tyneside Council, South 
Tyneside Council, Northumberland County 
Council, Eden District Council, the Marine 
Management Organisation, the Environment 
Agency, the Tyne Rivers Trust and Natural 
England.

Significant progress has been made in 2016 
on the implementation a range of civil 
engineering projects, with support from 
Defra and the Local Growth Fund, designed 
to reduce the amount of sediment arising 
from disused mines in the upper reaches of 
the river flowing into the estuary. Work 
continued during the year to evaluate the 
available options to deal with historic 
sediment already present within the river 
system.

An associated project to remediate and 
prevent contamination arising from the 
former St. Anthony’s tar works, Newcastle, 
was successfully implemented in 2016.
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CUSTOMER FOCUS – 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
The Port continues to invest in infrastructure 
both for existing and new customers. During 
the year this important link was reflected in 
the responsibilities of the Business 
Development Director where customer 
needs, in respect of commercial terms and 
infrastructure requirements, were brought 
together for the first time.

Investment of £14.6m million helped the 
Port to further improve facilities and 
services for customers during 2016. There 
have been a significant number of projects 
which have commenced, continued or 
concluded during the year, the largest of 
which is associated with the role of the Port 
in connection with the conversion from coal-
fired power generation to wood pellet of 
Lynemouth Power Station in South 
Northumberland. The total cost of the 
scheme has been quoted as $400 million 
(c.£300 million) most of which is being 
funded by the owners, Energetický a 
průmyslový holding, a.s. (EPH). This 
includes the substantial investment in 
facilities under construction at the Port of 
Tyne. Comparable facilities at other ports 
have been estimated to cost c. £100 million.

During the year, the Port of Tyne contributed 
£8.8 million to this project which includes 
investment in state-of-the-art quayside 
unloading and conveying equipment.

Significant investment was also made in the 
relocation and upgrading of facilities for 
scrap metal handling customer, European 
Metals Recycling Ltd (EMR) that enabled 
the development of the LPL project as well 
as enhancing the facilities provided.

During 2016, work concluded on the 
development of further storage space for 
another key customer, Nissan, extending 
their footprint by 10 acres to 80 acres in 
total.

A new 25-year lease agreement was made 
with Tynegrain, a long-term tenant of the 
Port, facilitating investment in additional 
grain storage facilities.

The Port continues towards its vision of 
being recognised for outstanding customer 
service through achieving the international 
standard, the Institute of Customer Service 
(ICS) ServiceMark. The first step, to survey 
customer service attitudes amongst 
customers and employees was undertaken 
in 2016. The results showed an extremely 
high level of customer satisfaction (89.3%) 
which is the highest level achieved when 
benchmarked against 28 members within 
the Transport Sector of the Institute of 
Customer Service. The employee survey 
demonstrated the need to engage further 
with all staff to communicate and embed 
the consistent customer service standards 
the Port hopes to deliver. Steps to achieve 
the standard will continue during 2017.

PEOPLE FOCUS
There were a number of developments in 
2016 in support of the People Focus value 
that is based on the principles of training, 
developing and rewarding employees in a 
challenging, supportive and safe environment.

The organisation responded positively to the 
structural changes, centred upon the 
consolidation of the Port’s operations and 
efficiency improvements, announced in 2015. 
Average employee numbers reduced by 11% 
during the year to 471.

Despite these changes, the Port continued its 
rolling programme of apprenticeships with 11 
new apprentices appointed in 2016, taking the 
total number to 20, representing 4% of the 
total workforce.

The Port has maintained IIP Gold standard 
since 2014 and in 2016 retained the IIP 
Champion status for a second year. The IIP 
framework drives continual improvement and 
has been the basis for the ongoing 
development of training, planning and 
communications throughout the business.

In total the Port invested more than £0.3 
million in training and development, ranging 
from NVQs to an Operational Supervisor and 
Team Leader Development Programme.  
This equates to 9,000 hours of training or 
approximately 19 hours for every employee, 
developed to meet individual needs.

In December 2016 the Port of Tyne 
successfully achieved the North East Better 
Health at Work Silver Award following an 
assessment of the initiatives the Port has 
introduced to address health and wellbeing 
within the workplace.

The annual Employee Survey saw an 84% 
response rate, with 369 employees 
participating. Job satisfaction remains high, 
with 87% of employees feeling highly 
motivated, and the number of staff feeling 
valued by their manager increasing across the 
business. Areas for improvement identified 
included the development of a 
communications plan to further embed and 
promote the Port’s values as well as a refresh 
of the Personal Development Review process.
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STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
CONTINUED... 

FUTURE FOCUS
This value ensures that the Port continues 
to focus on its long-term future and 
sustainability with the Port handed on to 
future generations in an equivalent or better 
condition.

The Port has continued its strategies to 
develop new business and further broaden 
its portfolio of cargo handling to offset the 
decline in coal volumes. Central to this is 
continued investment in both infrastructure 
and in developing people, reflecting the 
Port’s desire to grow and achieve its vision.

In developing the Port’s annual plan and 
reviewing the ten year strategic plan, 
comprehensive research into economic 
trends was undertaken and this identified a 
number of new business and development 
opportunities that will be progressed in 
2017. As these opportunities require 
significant incremental investment in excess 
of its current capability, the Port will, in 
accordance with the recommendations of 
the latest 2016 Department for Transport 
trust port study, continue to review its 
options to secure large-scale, transformative 
funding and development.

In 2016, the development of the significant 
LPL facility at the Port, and the submission 
of a planning application for a 25MgW 
energy recovery facility for the Port’s 
Howdon site in North Tyneside are 
indicative of the scale of ambition the Port 
has. A planning application was made 
towards the end of 2016 and was approved 
in Spring 2017.

SUMMARY
Positive performance across most of the 
organisation’s business areas has resulted in 
the Port of Tyne’s continued delivery of 
significant value to its stakeholders, despite 
the backdrop of significantly reduced cargo 
volumes associated with the UK-wide 
reduction in coal imports. Stakeholder 
benefits to Government, the local community, 
employees, the business community and 
customers has remained high.

The new LPL wood pellet handling and 
storage facilities are scheduled to be 
commissioned in the second half of 2017 
and the resulting cargo throughput is 
anticipated to replace much of the lost coal 
imports, leading to improved financial 
performance going forwards.

Following the organisational restructure 
announced in 2015 and its subsequent 
implementation, the business has 
responded positively and the new structure, 
systems and processes have been 
embraced by employees who have risen to 
the challenge with resilience and 
commitment.

Employees have continued to remain open 
to the cultural change programme that 
remains key to the business’s future 
success and a vital component of the future 
growth that will deliver enhanced value to 
the Port of Tyne’s stakeholders. As reported 
last year, we still face further challenges, 
together with new uncertainties, but with 
sound strategies identified, and with the 
continued support of employees, customers 
and all other stakeholders, we look forward 
to the coming period and taking advantage 
of the opportunities that lie ahead.

I would like to place on record my thanks, 
once again, to all my colleagues for their 
continued efforts during 2016.

Andrew Moffat 
Chief Executive Officer

29 March 2017
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THE DIRECTORS OF 
THE PORT OF TYNE 
PRESENT THEIR 
ANNUAL REPORT AND 
ACCOUNTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED  
31 DECEMBER 2016.

THE BOARD
The Board meets on a monthly basis to 
review financial information and matters 
reserved for the Board and to exercise full 
control over the business. The roles of 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
are separate and clearly defined.  
The Non-Executive Chairman and  
Non-Executive Directors, who comprise the 
majority of the Board, are appointed by  
the Secretary of State for the Department 
for Transport and are subject to the process 
laid down in the Nolan Committee Report. 
The term of office is for a specified period, 
normally three years.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board operates a number of  
permanent committees:

(i) The Audit Committee comprises:

M Pott (Chairman)

A G Rutherford (until 15 November 2016)

N A West (from 1 June 2016)

M Preece (from 1 June 2016)

The Audit Committee assists the Board in 
discharging its responsibilities to maintain 
the integrity of the financial statements, 
reviewing financial information, financial 
plans and budget, and to monitor the 
effectiveness of the systems of internal 
control including risk management. It also 
reviews the effectiveness of the internal and 
external auditors and the objectivity of the 
external auditor.

(ii) The Remuneration Committee 
comprises:

J W Hargreaves  
(Chairman – until 15 October 2016)

S Crosland (appointed 1 July 2016 and 
Chairman from 23 November 2016)

H P Florek

N A West

(iii) The Nominations Committee comprises:

H P Florek (Chairman)

J W Hargreaves (until 15 October 2016)

S Crosland (from 1 July 2016)

N A West (co-opted onto committee for 
recruitment of new Chairman)

A N Moffat

The Nominations Committee assists the 
Board in reviewing the structure, size  
and composition (including the skills, 
knowledge, experience and diversity) of  
the Board and makes recommendations  
to the Board with regard to any changes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Directors are committed to high 
standards of corporate governance and 
have implemented systems of corporate 
governance compliant with the principles of 
Modernising Trust Ports II and the relevant 
sections of the UK Corporate Governance 
Code.

REPORT OF  
THE BOARD  
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In 2001 the Port of Tyne was classified as a 
‘public corporation’ by the Office of National 
Statistics and as a result, since that date, 
the Port’s borrowings, albeit an insignificant 
part of the total, have been included within 
the Public Sector Borrowing Requirements.

The Department for Transport issues 
regulatory guidance for Trust Ports and this 
was most recently updated in 2016 when 
the Department published ‘Trust Port Study: 
Key Findings and Recommendations’ which 
focussed upon governance, stakeholder 
interaction and regular review of the 
suitability of the trust port model. The Board 
has reviewed the recommendations 
contained therein together with those made 
in earlier guidance and has put in place 
procedures to ensure their adoption.

In fulfilling its duties the Board has also had 
regard to the requirements of the Port 
Marine Safety Code, which was initially 
published in 2012 and updated in 2015, the 
Turnbull Report and the UK Corporate 
Governance Code.

The executive team has continued to carry 
out regular formal risk reviews and 
maintained a Port-wide Risk Register. The 
reporting of any significant risk matters and 
changes to this Risk Register continue to be 
reported to the Board at its monthly 
meetings.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND 
RISK MANAGEMENT
The Directors are responsible for the 
business’s system of internal control. Such a 
system provides reasonable but not 
absolute assurance against material loss or 
misstatement.

Key procedures that have been established 
include an organisational structure with 
clear operating procedures, lines of 
responsibility and delegated authority. In 
particular, there are defined procedures for:

– capital investment covering appraisal and 
authorisation

– financial reporting within a comprehensive 
financial planning and accounting 
framework

– internal audit to monitor the system of 
internal control and risk management

– the procurement of goods and services

The Directors have reviewed the 
effectiveness of the system of internal 
control for the accounting year and the 
period to the date of the approval of the 
financial statements in accordance with the 
principles included in the UK Corporate 
Governance Code and other relevant 
guidance.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND 
UNCERTAINTIES
Risk management system 
The Port operates a risk management 
system that captures material and strategic 
regulatory, commercial, operational, financial 
and people risks. Mitigating controls are 
designed for all material risks identified with 
resulting actions incorporated into Business 
Area Business Plans and extended to senior 
management personal objectives as 
appropriate. Material risks are formally 
reviewed, scored and ranked each year with 
updates provided to the Board of any 
changes to these risks during the year. The 
assessment of new risks arising is a standing 
item on the monthly Board agenda.

Key risks and uncertainties 
Key risks and uncertainties, as detailed on 
the Port’s Risk Register, are discussed at 
each Board meeting.

Regulatory – Brexit 
The risks and uncertainties associated with 
Brexit are of significance to the Port, which 
may lead to changes to trading and customs 
arrangements having a significant impact 
upon the Port and/or its customers.

Regulatory – Energy Policy 
Regulatory risks associated with 
Government energy supply and support 
regimes and port policies are under 
constant review. Changes in energy policy 
can have a material impact upon the Port, 
as experienced with the decline of coal 
imports and the opportunities and 
investment required to put in place the 
necessary infrastructure to handle wood 
pellet on behalf of power generation 
customers.

Competition 
Risks to the competitiveness of the Port are 
impacted by movements in global 
commodity pricing and changes in the level 
of national and international demand for 
products and services, with the latter being 

strongly influenced by economic factors 
including the relative strength of Sterling 
against other major currencies and the 
health of international trading markets. The 
Port monitors these risks.

Competition risks are ever-present and we 
particularly monitor and note the 
infrastructure investments being made by 
competitor ports. The Port continually 
reviews its own investment options and 
priorities and these decisions are duly 
informed by the risk management process.

Operational 
Operational risk mitigations have been 
identified, through the risk management 
process, relating to health, safety and 
environment, operational capacity,  
condition of infrastructure and handling of 
new cargo types and their respective 
impacts.

Financial 
Financial risk includes being able to access 
appropriate funding to allow business 
expansion. In 2008 a Harbour Revision 
Order granted the Port of Tyne unlimited 
borrowing powers. On 1 Aug 2014, the 
business entered into a £50 million 
revolving credit facility with Barclays that 
runs until July 2019. Borrowings under this 
facility at 31 December 2016 totalled 
£36.25 million.

Organisational 
People are a hugely important element of 
the Port’s current and future success. 
Organisational structure, skills availability, 
succession planning and employee 
engagement are also subject to constant 
review through the Port’s risk management 
process.

PENSION SCHEMES
The Port operates two defined benefit 
pension schemes and whilst these schemes 
were both closed to new members in 2001, 
risks remain regarding the performance of 
the associated investment portfolios relative 
to the cost of providing ongoing pension 
benefits. Further details can be found in 
note 23 to the financial statements.

Furthermore, in respect of industry-wide 
pension schemes, the Port has funding 
obligations to the Pilots National Pension 
Fund (PNPF) and the Former Registered 
Dock Workers Pension Scheme (FRDWPS).

REPORT OF THE BOARD 
CONTINUED... 
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In the case of the PNPF, following 
conclusion of all legal actions, the scheme 
Trustee has allocated deficit shares to 
individual ports, including the Port of Tyne. 
The Trustee has implemented a 16 year 
recovery plan, commencing from 1st 
January 2013. To recover the Port’s 
associated cash contributions to this 
recovery plan, the Port adds a PNPF levy to 
its pilotage fees with the overall cash impact 
upon the Port targeted to be neutral. 
Further details are given in note 23 to the 
financial statements.

INVESTMENT POLICY
The business’s policy is to ensure that 
investments achieve long-term commercial 
viability and sustainability for the Port, its 
users, its employees and stakeholders.

The primary objective of the Port of Tyne is 
to generate commercial rates of returns on 
its investments, while maintaining security 
of assets.

Details of the primary 2016 capital 
investments are provided in the Chief 
Executive Officer’s Report.

GOING CONCERN
After making due enquiries, including 
consideration of recent and forecast trading 
performance, cash flow forecasts and 
banking facilities, the directors have 
reasonable expectation that the Port of Tyne 
Authority has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. For this reason, they 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the financial statements.

BOARD ATTENDANCE
Twelve Board meetings (one of which was a 
conference call), three Audit Committee 
meetings, four Remuneration Committee 
meetings and two Nominations Committee 
meetings were held during the year.

The table below shows the number of 
meetings attended by each Board member.

BOARD REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee determines 
the remuneration and benefits of Executive 
Directors. Fees for the Non-Executive 
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ 
duties are determined by the Board on the 
advice of the Remuneration Committee.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Port aims to reward its people fairly and 
responsibly in a manner that will best serve 
the interests of its stakeholders.

The Port has developed a formal 
Remuneration Policy which is designed to 
attract, retain and motivate its leaders within 
a framework which will drive and support 
business strategy and promote the long-
term success of the business.

All elements of executive remuneration are 
periodically reviewed against comparative 
benchmarked data and the organisation’s 
policy is to remunerate at the median of 
such data.

Director Board 
meetings*

Audit 
Committee 
meetings**

Remuneration 
Committee 
meetings***

Nomination 
Committee 
Meetings

A N Moffat 12 3 4 2

S R Harrison 12 – – –

D C Barrie 2 1 – –

M L Glanville 7 2 – –

H P Florek 12 – 4 2

A G Rutherford 10 1 – –

J W Hargreaves 6 – 2 1

M Pott 8 3 – –

N West 11 2 4 1

M A Preece 10 2 – –

S Crosland 5 – 2 1

*  Including 11 monthly meetings and additional conference call of the full Board 
in January 2016.

**  Although not members of the Audit Committee, both A N Moffat and  
M L Glanville/ D C Barrie were invited to meetings in the year.

***  Although not a member of the Remuneration Committee, A N Moffat was  
invited to attend all four meetings in the year.
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REMUNERATION 
FRAMEWORK

Element Purpose and strategy Operation Opportunity Performance measures

Executive Directors

Base salary To attract and retain high 
calibre individuals.

Set to reflect the market.

Reviewed annually with 
changes effective from 
January each year, 
benchmarked periodically 
by the Committee against 
the remuneration levels for 
executives in similar roles 
in organisations of a 
comparable size.

Paid monthly in cash.

No prescribed maximum. 

Annual increases are 
normally in line with those 
of all other employees, 
unless due to promotion or 
change of responsibility.

Performance Development 
Reviews are undertaken 
annually.

Benefits To support a competitive 
remuneration package in 
the market place.

Benefits include provision 
of a company car (or cash 
in lieu), private medical 
health care, life assurance 
and permanent health 
insurance.

No maximum limit is 
prescribed as the cost of 
providing benefits 
fluctuates. However, the 
Committee monitors, on 
an annual basis, the 
overall cost of the benefit 
provision.

None

Pension To support a competitive 
remuneration package in 
the market place.

The Port makes 
contributions into a 
defined contribution Group 
Personal Pension plan, or 
pays an allowance of 
equivalent value, less the 
cost of Employers NI.

The amount of 
contributions made by the 
Port varies by schemes 
and by employee.

None

Annual 
Incentive Plan

To reward individual 
achievement through a 
combination of financial 
and personal objectives in 
line with the organisation’s 
strategy and business 
plan.

Paid annually after 
assessment of 
achievements of personal 
objectives and of company 
financial performance 
after accounts are audited.

OTE of up to 35% of salary 
available under this plan.

Financial performance is 
evaluated against 
budgeted EBITDA and 
personal objectives against 
those previously 
determined at the 
beginning of the relevant 
year.

Long-term 
Incentive Plan

To align reward to long 
term development of 
business and encourage 
retention of key talent.

Plans are set up on a 3 
year rolling basis and are 
payable annually at the 
end of the Plan period 
after the assessment of 
financial performance, 
customer service levels 
and employee 
engagement.

OTE of up to 35% of salary 
available under this plan.

Financial performance is 
evaluated against Turnover 
and Profit before Tax 
included within the 
Strategic Plan. Customer 
service and employee 
engagement performance 
are measured against third 
party survey results.

REPORT OF THE BOARD 
CONTINUED... 
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Element Purpose and strategy Operation Opportunity Performance measures

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive 
Directors’ Fees

To attract and retain high 
quality and experienced 
Non-Executive Directors.

The remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors, including 
the Chairman and Deputy 
Chairman is determined by the 
Remuneration Committee and 
ratified by the Board.

The Chairmen of the Board 
Committees are paid an 
additional fee to reflect the 
extra work involved, unless 
these roles are fulfilled by the 
Chairman / Deputy Chairman. 

Non-Executive Directors are 
not eligible for pension scheme 
membership or incentive 
arrangements.

Fees are set at levels 
which reflect the 
commitment and 
contribution expected 
from Non-Executive 
Directors and are 
appropriately positioned 
against peer organisations.

Performance 
Development Reviews 
to commence in 2017.

CONSIDERATION OF 
EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS 
ACROSS THE PORT
The Port, through its focus on People, 
recognises the vital role of all of its employees 
and to train, develop and reward all those who 
work for the Port in a challenging, supportive 
and safe environment.

The Port’s policy is to reward its people fairly 
for their contribution to the organisation. This 
includes a competitive basic salary which is 
reflective of an employee’s skills, experience 
and responsibility and which is reviewed 
annually. The business operates a Profit 
Share Scheme, where a percentage of the 
company’s Profit before Tax is distributed to 
employees. This ensures that employees not 
only contribute to the performance of the 
business but also share in its success.

In setting its Remuneration Policy for 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors the 
Committee takes into consideration its impact 
and compatibility with remuneration across 
the Port. The Committee is provided 
throughout the year with information 
regarding pay and benefits for the wider 
workforce which gives appropriate context for 
the Committee to make informed decisions. 

Differences in salary levels and in the levels of 
potential reward are dependent upon 
seniority and responsibility, although a key 
reference point is the level of basic pay 
increase awarded to the workforce generally. 
A proportion of the Executive Directors’ 
remuneration package is delivered through 
performance-related pay, which links to the 
strategy of the business.

RECRUITMENT 
REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee will aim to set 
a new Executive Director’s remuneration 
package in line with the Company’s 
approved policy at the time of appointment. 
The Committee will take into account the 
skills and experience of the candidate, the 
prevailing market rates and the importance 
of securing the best available candidate. 
The Committee may also structure an 
appointment package that it considers 
appropriate to recognise awards or benefits 
that may be forfeited on resignation from a 
previous position. Other payments may be 
made in relation to relocation expenses and 
other incidental expenses as appropriate.

Fees for new Non-Executive Directors will 
be set in accordance with approved levels at 
the time of appointment.

SERVICE CONTRACTS
It is the Company’s policy that all Executive 
Directors have service contracts in place 
which detail the terms of their appointment 
and remuneration packages and which can 
be terminated by the Company giving a 
minimum of between 3 and 12 months’ 
notice by either party; depending upon the 
individual contract of the Director 
concerned.

POLICY ON TERMINATION
If an Executive Director’s employment is to 
be terminated, the Port’s policy is to seek to 
agree a termination payment based on the 
value of base salary, contractual pension 
amounts and other benefits that would have 
accrued during the contractual notice 
period. As appropriate at the time, the 
departing director may work or be placed on 
garden leave for all or part of his/her notice 
period, or receive a payment in lieu of notice 
in accordance with the service agreement.

The Remuneration Committee will consider 
the circumstances in each case and has 
discretion to negotiate settlement terms with 
the Executive Director that the Committee 
considers to be reasonable and in the best 
interest of the organisation and to enter into 
a Settlement Agreement with the Executive 
Director to effect the terms agreed.

Non-Executive Directors’ appointments may 
be terminated without compensation.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS
The service contracts of A N Moffat and S R 
Harrison are terminable on twelve months’ 
notice and that of D C Barrie is initially 
terminable on three months notice.

Details of remuneration (excluding pensions) 
are given to the right:

Other Benefits include incentive payments 
earned during the year, provision of 
company cars (or cash in lieu), private 
medical health care, life assurance and 
permanent health insurance, termination 
payments and taxable expenses.

PENSIONS
In addition to the benefits outlined under 
‘Service Contracts’ above, all of the 
Executive Directors are also members of the 
Group Personal Pension Scheme, a defined 
contribution scheme, to which the business 
contributes a percentage of pensionable 
salary excluding death in service benefit, 
which is provided separately.

Further details are given in the table to the 
right:

Basic salary 
(£)  

Board fees 
(£)  

Other 
benefits (£) 

Total 2016 
(£)  

Total 2015* 
(£)

Non-Executive Directors

H P Florek - 52,020 - 52,020 52,020

D J Appleton  
(until 30 Nov 2015)

- - - - 14,566

J W Hargreaves 
(until 15 October 2016)

- 21,675 - 21,675 26,010

M Pott - 18,537 - 18,537 18,537

S Crosland 
(from 1 Jul 2016)

- 7,283 - 7,283 -

A G Rutherford 
(until 15 Nov 2016)

- 13,352 - 13,352 14,566

N A West - 14,566 - 14,566 14,566

M Preece  
(from 1 Jul 2015)

- 14,566 - 14,566 7,283

Executive Directors

A N Moffat 218,484 - 41,656 260,140 284,871

D C Barrie 
(from 7 Nov 2016)

19,037 - 1,365 20,402 -

J Hudson  
(until 31 May 2015)

- - - - 64,676

S R Harrison 150,000 - 26,726 176,726 187,711

M Glanville  
(from 23 June 2015)

99,497 - 8,453 107,950 79,543

Total for 2016 487,018 141,999 78,200 707,217

Total for 2015 490,658 147,548 126,143 764,349

Employers 
contribution rate 

(%)

Total 2016  
(£)

Total 2015 
(£)

A N Moffat* 20% 10,924 43,697

D Barrie 15% 2,856 -

S R Harrison 15% 22,500 22,279

M Glanville 15% 14,925 9,786

REPORT OF THE BOARD 
CONTINUED... 

* 2015 totals include benefit payments earned in that year, but actually paid in 2016

* Employer contributions ceased from 1 April 2016, and were replaced by a pension allowance, at an 
equivalent cost to the employer.
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DIRECTORS OF THE  
PORT OF TYNE
The Directors of the Port of Tyne are listed 
on page 1.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS  
IN CONTRACTS
Except as already disclosed in note 29, 
there are no contracts subsisting with the 
Authority or its subsidiaries in which any 
member of the Authority is materially 
interested.

INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Two incentive schemes are in place for 
senior management team members. An 
annual performance-related incentive 
scheme linked to both business and 
personal objectives, and a long-term 
incentive plan, introduced in 2015, with 
financial targets, as well as targets relating 
to customer service and employee 
engagement. Under the long-term incentive 
plan, each potential annual award relates to 
a three year period.

A profit share scheme is in place for all 
employees, enabling them to share in the 
performance of the business.

POLICY AND PRACTICE ON 
PAYMENT OF CREDITORS
The business is responsible for agreeing the 
terms and conditions under which business 
transactions with its suppliers are 
conducted. Payments to suppliers are made 
in accordance with these terms, provided 
that suppliers also comply with all other 
relevant conditions. At the end of the 
financial year, the weighted average 
payment term to the Port’s suppliers was 30 
days (2015 – 37 days).

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE 
CONTRIBUTIONS
No political contributions were made during 
the year (2015: £nil). Charitable donations 
amounted to £22k (2015: £106k).

DISCLOSURE OF 
INFORMATION TO THE 
AUDITORS
The Directors who held office at the date of 
approval of this Directors’ Report confirm 
that, so far as they are each aware, there is 
no relevant audit information of which the 
business’s auditors are unaware; and, 
having made enquiries of fellow directors 
and the business’s auditor, each member 
has taken all the steps that he/she ought to 
have taken as a member to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Port of 
Tyne Authority’s auditors are aware of that 
information.

By order of the Board of Directors

Andrew Davison LL.B 
Secretary

29 March 2017

Maritime House 
Tyne Dock 
South Shields 
Tyne and Wear 
NE34 9PT
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STATEMENT OF BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board of Directors is responsible for 
preparing the annual report and the 
financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Port of Tyne 
Authority are required to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which 
give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the group and Authority and of the 
profit or loss of the group for that period.  
In preparing these financial statements,  
the directors are required to:

– select suitable accounting policies and 
then apply them consistently;

– make judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent;

– state whether applicable UK Accounting 
Standards have been followed, subject to 
any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the financial statements; and

– prepare the financial statements on the 
going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the group 
and Authority will continue in business.

The Board of Directors are responsible for 
keeping proper accounting records that 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 
time the financial position of the group and 
Authority and enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with 
Section 42 of the Harbours Act 1964, as 
amended by the Transport Act 1981. They 
are also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the group and Authority and 
hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

The Board of Directors are responsible for 
the maintenance and integrity of the 
corporate and financial information included 
on the Authority’s website. Legislation in the 
United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements 
may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions.
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PORT OF TYNE AUTHORITY

We have audited the financial statements of 
the Port of Tyne Authority for the year ended 
31 December 2016 which comprise the 
Group Income Statement, the Group and 
Authority Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, the Group and Authority Statement 
of Changes in Equity, the Group and 
Authority Balance Sheets, the Group 
Statement of Cash Flows and the related 
notes 1 to 31. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice), including FRS102 the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable to the UK 
and Republic of Ireland.

This report is made solely to the Authority’s 
members, as a body, in accordance with 
the United Kingdom Harbours Act 1964, as 
amended by the United Kingdom Transport 
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. Our 
audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Authority’s members 
those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the 
Authority and the Authority’s members as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report, or 
for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF 
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR
As explained more fully in the Directors’ 
Responsibilities Statement set out on page 
22, the Directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require 
us to comply with the Auditing Practices 
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the group’s and the 
Authority’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 
the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the directors; and the 
overall presentation of the financial 
statements. In addition, we read all the 
financial and non-financial information in the 
Annual Report and Accounts to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited 
financial statements and to identify any 
information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent 
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 
course of performing the audit. If we become 
aware of any apparent material misstatements 
or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report.
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OPINION ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
In our opinion the financial statements:

– give a true and fair view of the state of the 
group’s and of the Authority’s affairs as at 
31 December 2016 and of the group’s 
profit for the year then ended;

– have been properly prepared in 
accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, 
including FRS102 the Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable to the UK and 
Republic of Ireland; and

– have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the United Kingdom 
Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the 
United Kingdom Transport Act 1981; and

Opinion on other matter 
In our opinion, based on the work 
undertaken in the course of the audit:

– the information given in the Report of the 
Board, the Statement of the Chairman and 
the Statement by the Chief Executive 
Officer for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the financial statements.

– the Report of the Board, the Statement of 
the Chairman and the Statement by the 
Chief Executive Officer have been 
prepared in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report 
by exception 
In light of the knowledge and understanding 
of the group and authority and its 
environment obtained in the course of the 
audit, we have identified no material 
misstatements in the Report of the Board, 
the Statement of the Chairman and the 
Statement by the Chief Executive Officer.

We have nothing to report in respect of the 
following matters where we are required to 
report to you if, in our opinion:

– adequate accounting records have not 
been kept, or returns adequate for our 
audit have not been received from 
branches not visited by us; or

– the Authority financial statements are not 
in agreement with the accounting records 
and returns; or

– certain disclosures of Directors’ 
remuneration specified by law are not 
made; or

– we have not received all the information 
and explanations we require for our audit.

Mark Hatton 
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP 
(Statutory Auditor) 
Newcastle upon Tyne

29 March 2017

NOTES:
1. The maintenance and integrity of the Port 

of Tyne Authority web site is the 
responsibility of the Directors; the work 
carried out by the auditors does not 
involve consideration of these matters 
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no 
responsibility for any changes that may 
have occurred to the financial statements 
since they were initially presented on the 
website.

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
CONTINUED... 
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FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS

GROUP INCOME  
STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

 
Notes

2016  
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Turnover – continuing operations 
Operating costs

2 45,877 
(37,278)

58,809 
(44,229)

Gross profit 
Administrative expenses

8,599 
(7,756)

14,580 
(7,397)

Before exceptional items 843 7,183 

Exceptional items     - Restructuring costs 
                                - Impairment of fixed assets

6 
6 

- 
-

(4,071) 
(2,475)

Group operating profit – continuing operations 
Share of operating profit in joint venture

5 
20

843 
-

637 
13

Total operating profit – group and share of joint venture 
Gain on revaluation of investment properties 
Profit on disposal of fixed assets

5 
10

843 
3,827 

1

650 
6,481 

21

Profit before interest and taxation 
Net interest and other expenses

 
4

4,671 
(948)

7,152 
(1,121)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities

8 3,723 
(335)

6,031 
(385)

Profit for the financial year 3,388 5,646 
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GROUP AND AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes
2016  

£000’s
2015  

£000’s

Profit for the financial year 3,388 5,646 

Remeasurement (loss) /gain recognised on defined  
benefit schemes 23 (4,001) 2,243 

Tax credit / (charge) relating to pension liability 8 594 (454)

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income (3,407) 1,789

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (19) 7,435

AUTHORITY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes
2016  

£000’s
2015  

£000’s

Profit for the financial year 2,700 5,439

Remeasurement (loss) / gain recognised on defined  
benefit schemes 23 (4,001) 2,243

Tax credit / (charge) relating to pension liability 594 (454)

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income (3,407) 1,789

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (707) 7,228
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GROUP AND AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF  
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AUTHORITY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

P&L Reserve 
£000

Non Distributable  
Reserve  
£000’s

Total  
Reserves  

£000’s

At 1 January 2015

(Loss) / profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income

83,929

(283) 
1,789

24,600

5,929 
-

108,529

5,646 
1,789

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,506 5,929 7,435

At 31 December 2015

(Loss) / profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income

85,435

(162) 
(3,407)

30,529

3,550 
-

115,964

3,388 
(3,407)

Total comprehensive income for the year (3,569) 3,550 (19)

At 31 December 2016 81,866 34,079 115,945

P&L Reserve 
£000

Non Distributable  
Reserve  
£000’s

Total  
Reserves  

£000’s

At 1 January 2015

(Loss) / profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income

77,612

(626) 
1,789

28,076

6,065 
-

105,688

5,439 
1,789

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,163 6,065 7,228

At 31 December 2015

(Loss) / profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income

78,775

(609) 
(3,407)

34,141

3,309 
-

112,916

2,700 
(3,407)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (4,016) 3,309 (707)

At 31 December 2016 74,759 37,450 112,209
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016  

£000’s
2015  

£000’s

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets

 
10

 
180,846

 
168,838

Current assets 
Stocks 
Debtors 
Cash at bank and in hand

 
12 
13 
14

 
879 

9,571 
378

 
611 

10,468 
136

 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

 
15

10,828 
(8,041)

11,215 
(14,911)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 2,787 (3,696)

Total assets less current liabilities 183,633 165,142

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (36,282) (20,546)

Provisions for liabilities 20 (12,212) (12,623)

Deferred Income 21 (5,854) (6,295)

Net assets excluding pension liability 129,285 125,678

Pension liability 23 (13,340) (9,714)

Net assets including pension liability 115,945 115,964

Reserves 
Profit and loss account 
Non distributable reserves

 
24 
24

 
81,866 
34,079

 
85,435 
30,529

Reserves 115,945 115,964

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by:

H Florek

Chairman 
29 March 2017

A N Moffat

Chief Executive Officer 
29 March 2017
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AUTHORITY BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016  

£000’s
2015  

£000’s  

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 
Investment in subsidiary 
Investment in joint venture

 
10 
11 
11

 
179,208 

1,280 
1

 
166,934 

1,280 
1

180,489 168,215

Current assets 
Stocks 
Debtors – due within one year 
Cash at bank and in hand

 
12 
13 
14

 
879 

6,048 
19

 
611 

7,468 
36

 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

 
15

6,946 
(7,832)

8,115 
(14,437)

Net current liabilities (886) (6,322)

Total assets less current liabilities 179,603 161,893

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (36,280) (20,544)

Provisions for liabilities 20 (11,920) (12,424)

Deferred Income 21 (5,854) (6,295)

Net assets excluding pension liability 125,549 122,630

Pension liability 23 (13,340) (9,714)

Net assets including pension liability 112,209 112,916

Reserves 
Profit and loss account 
Non distributable reserves

 
24 
24

 
74,759 
37,450

 
78,775 
34,141

Reserves 112,209 112,916

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by:

H Florek

Chairman 
29 March 2017

A N Moffat

Chief Executive Officer 
29 March 2017
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GROUP STATEMENT  
OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

 
Notes

2016  
£000’s

2015 
£000’s

Net cash inflow from operating activities 25 276 18,401

Investing activities
Interest received 
Payments to acquire fixed assets 
Receipts from sale of fixed assets

 3 
(15,319) 

1 

4 
(21,307) 

112 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (15,315) (21,191)

Financing activities
Interest paid 
Interest element of finance lease payments 
New long term loans 
Repayment of capital element of finance leases

(615) 
(2) 

15,750 
(14)

(741) 
(7) 

3,500 
(155)

Net cash inflow from financing activities 15,119 2,597

Increase / (decrease) in cash in the year 80 (193)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 25 48 241

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 25 128 48
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
Statement of compliance
Port of Tyne Authority is a Trust Port, 
established by an Act of Parliament.  
The registered Office is Maritime House, 
Tyne Dock, South Shields, NE34 9PT.  
The Group’s financial statements have  
been prepared in compliance with FRS102 
as it applies to the financial statements  
of the Group for the year ended 31 
December 2016.

Basis of preparation and change in 
accounting policy
The financial statements of Port of Tyne 
Authority were approved for issue by the 
Board of Directors on 29 March 2017. The 
financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with applicable accounting 
standards. The financial statements are 
prepared in sterling which is the functional 
currency of the Group and rounded to the 
nearest £’000.

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate 
the financial statements of the Authority and 
its subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 
December 2016. No income statement is 
presented for Port of Tyne Authority as 
permitted by section 408 of the Companies 
Act 2006.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date 
of their acquisition, being the date on which 
the Group obtains control and continue to 
be consolidated until the date that such 
control ceases. Control comprises the 
power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of the investee so as to obtain 
benefit from its activities.

Entities in which the Group holds an interest 
and which are jointly controlled by the 
Group and one or more other venturers 
under a contractual arrangement are 
treated as joint ventures. In the Group 
financial statements, joint ventures are 
accounted for using the equity method.

In the parent company financial statements 
investments in subsidiaries and joint 
ventures are accounted for at cost less 
impairment.

Judgements and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements 
requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported for assets and liabilities 
as at the balance sheet date and the 
amounts reported for revenues and 
expenses during the year. However the 
nature of estimation means that actual 
outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The following judgements and estimates 
have had the most significant effect on 
amounts recognised in the financial 
statements:

Revaluation of investment properties
 The Group carries its investment property 

at fair value, with changes in fair value being 
recognised in the income statement. The 
Group engaged CBRE to determine fair 
value as at 31 December 2016. The 
determined value is most sensitive to 
estimated yield and void periods. The key 
assumptions used to determine the fair 
value are further explained in note 10.

Categorisation of properties
 A property will be classified as investment 

property if the intention is to let it to one or 
more third parties throughout the medium 
term or beyond. Investment properties are 
held at fair value, with changes in value 
being recognised in the income statement. 
Operational properties are carried at 
depreciated historic cost. The categorisation 
of properties into these two categories 
therefore represents an area of judgement 
which may lead to material change in the 
value of the asset held on the balance sheet 
and the amounts recognised through the 
income statement.

Pension benefits
 The costs of defined benefit pension 

plans are determined using actuarial 
valuations. The actuarial valuation 
involves making assumptions about 
discount rates, future salary increases, 
mortality rates and future pension 
increases. Due to the complexity of the 
valuation, the underlying assumptions 
and the long term nature of these plans, 
such estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty. Further details are given in 
note 23.
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Operating lease commitments:
The Group has entered into property, 
vehicle and trailer operating leases and, 
as a lessee, it obtains use of property, 
plant and equipment. The classification  
of such leases as operating or finance 
lease requires the company to determine, 
based on an evaluation of the terms and 
conditions of the arrangements, whether 
it retains or acquires the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of these  
assets and accordingly whether the  
lease requires an asset and liability  
to be recognised in the statement of 
financial position.

Taxation
Management estimation is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based 
upon likely timing and level of future 
taxable profits together with an 
assessment of the effect of future tax 
planning strategies.

SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Such cost 
includes costs directly attributable to making 
the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant 
and equipment, at rates calculated to write off 
the cost, less estimated residual value, of each 
asset on a systematic basis over its expected 
useful life as follows:

Infrastructure (including roads,  
piers and swing bridge) 
15 to 100 years

Operational buildings (including quays) 
25 to 50 years

Dredging of a capital nature 
25 to 100 years

Plant & Machinery 
3 to 45 years

No depreciation is provided on  
freehold land.

The carrying value of tangible fixed assets 
are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate the 
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Investment properties
Certain of the Groups properties are held for 
long term investment. Investment properties 
are accounted for as follows:

– Investment properties are initially 
recognised at cost which includes 
purchase cost and any directly 
attributable expenditure

– Investment properties whose fair value 
can be measured reliably are measured 
at fair value. The surplus or deficit on 
revaluation is recognised in the income 
statement and accumulated in the profit 
and loss reserve unless a deficit below 
original cost or its reversal on an 
individual property is expected to be 
permanent, in which case it is recognised 
in the income statement for the year.

Further details are given within the 
Judgements and key sources of 
estimation uncertainty section on  
pages 39 and 40.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the 
Group obtains the right to consideration in 
exchange for its performance. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received, excluding discounts, 
rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty.

Revenue is recognised when services are 
physically provided to the customer and 
represents the value of services provided 
under contracts to the extent that there is a 
right to consideration and is recorded at the 
value of consideration due.

Amounts receivable under annual bulk 
handling contracts including Take or Pay 
guaranteed annual tonnage clauses are 
recognised as physically handled. Any 
contractual amounts due as a result of a 
shortfall against the guaranteed tonnage 
due under these contracts in a given 
contractual period are recognised only when 
there is a contractual right to receive the 
amount due.

Amounts receivable under operating leases, 
including any benefits or incentives given, 
are recognised on a straight-line basis over 
the period of the lease to the first 
contractual break date, even if the 
payments are not made on such a basis.

Where payments are received in advance  
of services provided, the amounts are 
recorded as Deferred Income and are 
included as part of Creditors due within  
one year.

Government grants, capital contributions 
and relocation contributions
Government grants and capital contributions 
are recognised when it is reasonable to 
expect that the grants will be received and 
that all related conditions will be met.

Grants and contributions in respect of 
capital expenditure are credited to a 
deferred income account and are released 
to profit over the expected useful life of the 
relevant assets by equal annual instalments.

Grants and contributions of a revenue 
nature are credited to income so as to 
match them with the expenditure to which 
they relate.

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value. Cost includes all costs 
incurred in bringing each item to its present 
location and condition. Provision is made for 
obsolete, slow-moving or defective items 
where appropriate.

Provisions for liabilities
A provision is recognised when the Group 
has a legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that 
an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance 
sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand 
and short term deposits with an original 
maturity date of three months or less. For 
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash and cash equivalents as 
defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED... 
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Short term debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest 
rate and receivable or payable within one year 
are recorded at transaction price. Any losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in the 
income statement in other operating 
expenses.

Exceptional items
The Group presents as exceptional items on 
the face of the income statement, those 
material items of income and expense that, 
because of the nature and expected 
frequency of the events giving rise to them, 
merit separate presentation to allow 
stakeholders to understand better the 
elements of financial performance in the 
period, so as to facilitate comparison with 
prior periods and to assess better trends in 
financial performance.

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the 
profit for the year and takes into account 
taxation deferred because of timing 
differences between the treatment of 
certain items for taxation and accounting 
purposes.

Deferred tax is recognised, without 
discounting, in respect of all timing 
differences between the treatment of 
certain items for taxation and accounting 
purposes which have arisen but not 
reversed by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all 
timing differences that have originated but 
not reversed at the balance sheet date 
where transactions or events that result in 
an obligation to pay more tax in the future or 
a right to pay less tax in the future have 
occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing 
differences are differences between the 
Group’s taxable profits and its results as 
stated in the financial statements that arise 
from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax 
assessments in periods different from those 
in which they are recognised in the financial 
statements.

Deferred tax is measured at the average  
tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
periods in which the timing differences  
are expected to reverse based on tax  
rates and laws that have been enacted  
or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are 
recorded using the rate of exchange ruling 
at the date of the transaction or, if hedged 
forward, at the rate of exchange under the 
related forward currency contract. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated using the rate of 
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date 
and the gains or losses on translation are 
included in the income statement.

Leasing and hire purchase commitments
Assets held under finance leases, which are 
leases where substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset have 
passed to the Group, and hire purchase 
contracts are capitalised in the balance 
sheet and are depreciated over the shorter 
of the lease term and the assets useful lives. 
A corresponding liability is recognised for 
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset 
and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments in the balance sheet. Lease 
payments are apportioned between the 
reduction of the lease liability and finance 
charges in the income statement so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases are 
charged in the income statement on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease 
incentives are recognised over the lease 
term on a straight-line basis.

Post-retirement benefits
The Authority operates and participates  
in a number of funded and unfunded 
pension schemes.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of 
providing benefits under the defined benefit 
plans is determined separately for each plan 
using the projected unit credit method 
which attributes entitlement to benefits to 
the current period (to determine current 
service cost) and to the current and prior 
periods (to determine the present value of 
defined benefit obligations) and is based on 
actuarial advice. When a settlement or 
curtailment occurs, the change in the 
present value of the scheme liabilities and 
the fair value of the plan assets reflects the 
gain or loss which is recognised in the 
income statement during the period in 
which it occurs.

The net interest element is determined by 
multiplying the net defined benefit liability 
by the discount rate, at the start of the 
period taking into account any changes in 
the net defined benefit liability during the 
period as a result of contribution and  
benefit payments. The net interest is 
recognised in profit or loss as other finance 
revenue or cost.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial 
gains and losses, the effect of the asset 
ceiling and the return on the net defined 
benefit liability (excluding amounts included 
in net interest) are recognised immediately 
in other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they occur.  
Re-measurements are not reclassified to the 
income statement in subsequent periods.

The defined net benefit pension asset or 
liability in the balance sheet comprises the 
total for each plan of the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation (using a 
discount rate based on high quality 
corporate bonds), less the fair value of plan 
assets out of which the benefits are to be 
settled directly. Fair value is based on 
market price information and in the case of 
quoted securities is the published bid price. 
The value of a net pension benefit asset is 
limited to the amount that may be recovered 
either through reduced contributions or 
agreed refunds from the scheme.

For defined contribution schemes, 
contributions are recognised in the income 
statement in the period in which they 
become payable.

The capital cost of unfunded pensions is 
charged to the income statement in the 
accounting period in which those pensions 
are granted.

The Group participates in a number of 
multi-employer defined benefit pension 
schemes. Where the Group is unable to 
determine its share of the assets and 
liabilities on a consistent and reliable basis  
it accounts for these schemes as if defined 
contribution schemes.

x177070_POT_p3_nm.indd   33 25/04/2017   09:47



34/ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 201534/ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

Turnover represents the amounts derived 
from the provision of goods and services 
which fall within the company’s ordinary 
activities, stated net of value added tax.

The Group operates in a number of Port 
related activities which are listed below. 
Sales were all made within the UK.

2. TURNOVER ANALYSIS

2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Conventional and Bulk 
Car Terminals 
Cruise and Ferry 
Logistics 
Estates

12,215 
7,584 
 3,182  
17,845 
3,018

25,090 
7,191 
2,626  

18,045 
2,805

 
Income from third party activities

43,844 
2,033

55,757 
3,052

45,877 58,809

Income from third party activities primarily 
consists of conservancy and pilotage income 
associated with traffic emanating from third 
party river users. 

Income from these sources attributable to 
the Port’s five main business areas has been 
allocated accordingly.

2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Interest receivable – other 
Other finance costs (note 23) 
Interest payable  
– on bank loans 
– finance charges in respect of finance leases 
– other

3 
(334) 

 
(595) 

(2) 
(20)

4 
(377) 

 
(696) 

(7) 
(45)

Group net interest payable and similar charges (948) (1,121)

4. NET INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

The following information is provided in 
accordance with the provisions of Statutory 
Harbour Undertakings (Pilotage Financial 
Statements) Regulations 1988:

The pilotage income above includes 
£322,000 (2015 - £355,000) in relation to 
the PNPF levy, a surcharge introduced to 
recover the incremental costs associated 
with the Ports financial liabilities in 

connection with the Pilots National Pension 
Fund (PNPF). 

This levy was introduced in 2013 and the 
total amount billed to date is £1,281,000 
(2015 - £959,000).

2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Income from pilotage (included in turnover):

Pilotage services 
Use of pilotage exemption certificates

2,940 
240

2,838 
201

3,180 3,039

Expenditure: 
Provision of pilotage services (included in operating costs)

 
1,210

 
1,197

3. PILOTAGE
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This is stated after charging/(crediting):
5. OPERATING PROFIT

2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Auditors’ remuneration – Ernst & Young LLP:

Group – audit 
 – audit related services 
 – taxation advisory 
 – customs advisory

51 
- 
- 

14

50 
5 
3 
-

65 58

Authority – audit (included above) 35 34

In addition to these amounts charged to the 
income statement, during the year 
£113,000 (2015: £40,000) was invoiced by 

Ernst & Young in relation to an ongoing 
project, and is currently held on the balance 
sheet.

2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible fixed assets:

Depreciation – owned

Impairment – owned

6,382 
-

6,691 
2,475

6,382 9,166

Hire of plant and machinery – rentals payable under operating leases 1,788 1,562

Release of grants (note 21)  
Release of relocation contribution (note 21)

(454) 
(157)

(445) 
(157)

Foreign exchange differences 4  5

6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2016 

£000’s
2015  

£000’s

Redundancy and related payments

Associated pension scheme past service cost (note 23)

-

-

3,531

540

- 4,071

Impairment of Fixed Assets - 2,475

-  6,546

The impairment of fixed assets in 2015 
related to a review of the value in use of the 
coal conveyor following the sooner than 

anticipated decline in the coal handling 
market.
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7. STAFF COSTS

These staff costs exclude the 2015 
restructuring costs detailed in note 6.

The average number of persons, excluding 
contractors, employed by the Group 
(including directors) during the year was as 
follows:

Including contractors, the average number 
of Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) employed 
by the Port in 2016 was 471 (2015: 529).  
At the end of the year the number of FTEs 
was 437 (2015: 483).

Details of the emoluments of the directors of 
the Authority are given in the Report of the 
Board on page 20. 

Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015 

£000’s

Authority 
2016  

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Wages and salaries 16,099 17,713 12,849 13,539

Social security costs 1,624 1,787 1,312 1,373

Other pension costs:

– Net current service cost within operating profit (note 23) 360 539 360 539

– Other pension costs 861 914 769 782

18,944 20,953 15,290 16,233

Group 
2016  

No.

Group 
2015 

No.

Authority 
2016  

No.

Authority  
2015 

No.

Directors of the Authority 9 9 9 9

General management and administration 60 69 60 69

Engineering 48 57 48 57

Marine Services & Security 60 64 60 64

Bulk cargo 63 79 63 79

Cruise and Ferries 27 30 27 30

Logistics 183 189 60 59

450 497 327 367
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8. TAX
(a) Tax charge on ordinary activities The tax charge is made up as follows:

 2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Current tax:

UK corporation tax on the profit for the year 
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

75 
152

325 
(38)

Total current tax 227 287

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences 
Adjustment in respect of previous years 
Effect of change in tax rate

898 
(121) 
(669)

1,323 
9 

(1,234)

Total deferred tax (note 20) 108 98

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 335 385

(b) Tax included in Group statement of 
comprehensive income

The tax charge is made up as follows:

(c) Factors affecting the total tax charge 
for the year:

The tax assessed for the year is less than 
the rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% 
(2015 – 20.25%). The differences are 
explained below:

(d) Factors affecting future tax charges

The UK Government reduced the UK 
corporation tax rate to 20% on 1 April 2015 
and therefore a rate of 20% applies to current 
tax liabilities arising during the period. 

The UK government has announced its 
intention to reduce the rate of UK corporation 
tax to 17%. This substantively enacted rate 
has been applied to deferred tax assets but 
has no impact on current tax liabilities. 

 2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3,723 6,031

Tax on ordinary activities multiplied by the rate 
of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015 – 20.25%)

 
745

 
1,221

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 
Fixed asset differences 
Marginal relief 
Other short term timing differences 
Share of (profits)/ losses in joint venture carried forward 
Amounts charged to SOCI 
Adjustment in respect of prior periods – current tax 
Adjustment in respect of prior periods – deferred tax 
Adjust closing deferred tax to prevailing rate 
Adjust opening deferred tax to prevailing rate

11 
484 

- 
3 
- 

(206) 
152 

(121) 
(2,177) 

1,445

138 
417 
(1) 

1 
(3) 

- 
(37) 

9 
(1,599) 

239

Total tax expenses for the year (note 8(a)) 335 385

 2016 
£000’s

2015  
£000’s

Current tax:

UK corporation tax on the profit for the year (75) -

Total current tax (75) -

Deferred tax:

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension liability (note 20)

 
(519)

 
454

Total deferred tax (note 20) (519) 454

Total tax charge (594) 454
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9. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
 Group 2016 

£000’s
2015  

£000’s

Cost:

At beginning of the year 682 682

At the end of the year 682 682

Amortisation:

At beginning of the year 
Charge for the year

682

-

682

-

At the end of the year 682 682

Net book value:

At beginning of the year - -

At the end of the year - -

The Directors consider each acquisition 
separately for the purpose of determining 
the amortisation period of any goodwill  
that arises.  

Goodwill associated with the acquisition  
of Tyne Logistics Company Limited was 
amortised over five years.

Group Freehold land 
& buildings  

£000’s

Investment 
property  
£000’s

Infrastructure 
£000’s

Dredging  
£000’s

Craft, plant & 
machinery  

£000’s

Capital works 
in progress  

£000’s

Total 
£000’s

Cost or valuation: 
At 1 January 2016 
Additions 
Transfers 
Disposals 
Revaluation 
Reclassification

 
85,447 

1,075 
1,178 

- 
- 

(17)

 
59,638 

735 
- 
- 

3,813 
15

 
6,314 

(10) 
48 

- 
- 
-

 
7,682 

518 
2,772 

- 
- 
-

 
63,812 

580 
316 
(61) 

- 
-

 
22,848 
11,667 
(4,314) 

- 
- 

12

 
245,741 
14,565 

- 
(61) 

3,813 
10

At 31 December 2016 87,683 64,201 6,352 10,972 64,647 30,213 264,068

Depreciation: 
At 1 January 2016 
Charge for the year 
On disposals 
Reclassification

 
33,992 

2,423 
- 

(2)

 
- 
- 
- 
- 

 
3,508 

131 
- 
-

 
2,579 

266 
- 
-

 
36,824 
3,562 

(61) 
-

 
- 
- 
- 
-

 
76,903 
6,382 

(61) 
(2)

At 31 December 2016 36,413 - 3,639 2,845 40,325 - 83,222

Net book value: 
At 31 December 2016

 
51,270

 
64,201

 
2,713

 
8,127

 
24,322

 
30,213

 
180,846

At 31 December 2015 51,455 59,638 2,806 5,103 26,988 22,848 168,838

Leased assets included in the 
above:

Net book value at 31 Dec 2016
 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
51

 
-

 
51

Net book value at 31 Dec 2015 - - - - 83 - 83

10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
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Authority Freehold land 
& buildings  

£000’s

Investment 
property  
£000’s

Infrastructure 
£000’s

Dredging  
£000’s

Craft, plant & 
machinery  

£000’s

Capital works 
in progress  

£000’s

Total 
£000’s

Cost or valuation: 
At 1 January 2016 
Additions 
Transfers 
Disposals 
Revaluation 
Reclassification

 
84,660 

1,062 
1,178 

- 
- 

(17)

 
64,368 

947 
- 
- 

3,543 
15

 
6,314 

(10) 
48 

- 
- 
-

 
7,682 

518 
2,772 

- 
- 
-

 
54,758 

436 
317 
(18) 

- 

 
22,849 
11,468 
(4,315) 

- 
- 
-

 
240,631 

14,421 
- 

(18) 
3,543 

(2)

At 31 December 2016 86,883 68,873 6,352 10,972 55,493 30,002 258,575

Depreciation: 
At 1 January 2016 
Charge for the year 
On disposals 
Reclassification

 
33,506 

2,402 
- 

(2)

 
- 
- 
- 
-

 
3,508 

131 
- 
-

 
2,579 

266 
- 
-

 
34,104 
2,891 

(18) 
-

 
- 
- 
- 
-

 
73,697 
5,690 

(18) 
(2)

At 31 December 2016 35,906 - 3,639 2,845 36,977 - 79,367

Net book value: 
At 31 December 2016

 
50,977

 
68,873

 
2,713

 
8,127

 
18,516

 
30,002

 
179,208

At 31 December 2015 51,154 64,368 2,806 5,103 20,654 22,849 166,934

Leased assets included in the 
above:

Net book value at 31 Dec 2016

 
 
-

 
 
-

 
 
-

 
 
-

 
44

 
 
-

 
44

Net book value at 31 Dec 2015 - - - - 57 - 57

Included within land and buildings  
is an amount of £14,519,577  
(2015 – £14,294,076) relating to land  
which is not depreciated.

Freehold land and buildings (other than 
investment properties), which include owner 
occupied property assets and specialised 
marine assets, are held at historic cost.

Investment properties, which are all 
freehold, continue to be valued on an  
open market existing use basis and a  
full revaluation was performed as at  
31 December 2016 by CB Richard Ellis.

The critical assumptions made relating  
to the valuations are set out below:

 2016 2015  

Yield range – Industrial 8.75-12% 9-11.5% 

Yield range – Offices 9 -12% 9.5-12.5%

Yield range – Land, including surfaced and unsurfaced areas 5-12.5%  7-12%

Current void (based on anticipated demand) 3-24 mths 3-24 mths
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10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
CONTINUED...
Movements in the fair value of investment 
properties are as follows:

 Group 
£000’s 

Authority 
£000’s

Fair value:

At 1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals 

Surplus on valuation

Reclassification

59,638

735

- 

3,813

15

64,368

734

-

3,756

15

At 31 December 2016 64,201 68,873

The depreciated historic cost of investment 
properties held at fair value is as follows:

 Group 
£000’s 

Authority 
£000’s

At 31 December 2016 23,157 23,707

At 1 January 2016 22,407 22,732

11. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Authority Subsidiary 

Undertakings 
£000’s

Joint Ventures  
£000’s

Total  
£000’s

Cost and net book value:

At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 1,280 1 1,281

The undertakings in which the Group’s 
interest at the year end is more than 20% 
are as follows:

Subsidiary undertakings Country of 
Incorporation

Principal 
activity

 % of ord. 
shares held  

by Group 

 % of ord. 
shares held  
by Authority 

Port of Tyne Distribution Limited UK Distribution 100% 100%

Tyne Logistics Company Limited UK Container 
handling

100% 100%

Port of Tyne Logistics Limited UK Dormant 100% 100%

North East Ports Limited UK Dormant 100% 100%

Port of Tyne plc UK Dormant 100% 100%

Joint venture 
Port of Tyne Wood Pellet Limited

UK Wood pellet 
handling

50% 50%
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12. STOCKS

13. DEBTORS
Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016  

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Trade debtors 6,592 7,322 3,714 4,605

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 324 605

Amounts owed by joint venture 618 618 - -

Other debtors 1,399 1,011 1,381 993

VAT - 758 - 758

Prepayments 807 634 629 507

Corporation Tax 155 125 - -

9,571 10,468 6,048 7,468

Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016  

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Raw materials and consumables 723 611 723 611

Assets held for resale 156 - 156 -

879 611 879 611

14. CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS
Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015 

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Cash at bank and in hand 378 136 19 36

15. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE 
WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016  

£000’s

Authority  
2015  

£000’s

Overdraft (note 25) 250 88 250 -

Obligations under finance leases 14 14 14 13

Trade creditors 2,035 5,829 1,521 5,479

Taxation and social security 653 576 546 457

Other creditors 625 1,275 599 1,257

Accruals and deferred income 4,380 6,954 3,797 5,882

Corporation tax 84 175 84 156

Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 1,021 1,193

8,041 14,911 7,832 14,437
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16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE 
AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Group 
2016 

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015  

£000’s

Bank loans 36,250 20,500 36,250 20,500

Obligations under finance leases 32 46 30 44

36,282 20,546 36,280 20,544

17. LOANS

Group 
2016 

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015  

£000’s

Wholly repayable within five years 36,250 20,500 36,250 20,500

Loans repayable, included within creditors 
may be analysed as follows:

In August 2014 the Authority entered into a 
revolving credit facility (RCF) with Barclays 
Bank PLC up to the sum of £50,000,000 
expiring in 2019. The purpose of the facility 
was to refinance existing loans and to 
finance current and future expansion plans 
of the business. Monies drawn are secured 
on a number of assets at Tyne Dock, South 

Shields. Interest is charged at a rate of 
LIBOR plus a margin of between 1.00% 
and 2.85% depending on leverage. 

At 31 December 2016 the amount drawn  
on the facility was £36,250,000 (2015 – 
£20,500,000). The largest balance owed  
on this loan during 2016 was £37,250,000.

18. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES AND 
HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACTS
The maturity of obligations under finance 
leases is as follows:

Group 
2016 

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015  

£000’s

Within one year

In the second to fifth years

16

32

16

49

15

31

15

47

Less: future finance charges

48

(2)

65

(5)

46

(2)

62

(5)

46 60 44 57

19. BORROWING POWERS
Authority

In July 2008 a Harbour Revision Order 
granted Port of Tyne Authority unlimited 
borrowing powers.
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20. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

(a) Deferred Tax

The amounts provided for deferred tax and 
the full potential charge calculated at 17% 
(2015 – 18%) are set out below:

The elements of deferred tax are as follows:

(b) Share of loss retained by Joint Venture

Group 2016 
£000’s

 2015  
£000’s

At the beginning of the year 
Credit to income statement 

615 
-

628 
(13)

At the end of the year 615 615

21. DEFERRED INCOME
(a) Grants and capital contributions

Group and Authority 2016 
£000’s

 2015  
£000’s

At beginning of year 
Capital contribution in year  
Released to income statement (note 5)

4,579 
170 

(454)

5,024 
- 

(445)

At end of year 4,295 4,579

(b) Relocation contributions

2016 
£000’s

 2015  
£000’s

At beginning of year 
Released to income statement (note 5)

1,716 
(157)

1,873 
(157)

At the end of the year 1,559 1,716

Total 5,854 6,295

Group and Authority Group 
2016 

£000’s

Group 
2015 

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015  

£000’s

At the beginning of the year 12,008 11,456 12,424 11,966

Charge to income statement 108 98 15 4

(Credit) / charge to statement of total other  
comprehensive income (519) 454 (519) 454

At the end of the year 11,597 12,008 11,920 12,424

Group 
2016 

£000’s

Group 
2015  

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Difference between accumulated depreciation 
and amortisation and capital allowances 7,299 7,429 6,919 7,051

Other short term timing differences (2,682) (2,123) (2,680) (2,122)

Capital Gains 6,980 6,702 7,681 7,495

Deferred tax liability 11,597 12,008 11,920 12,424
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22. COMMITMENTS

Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015 

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Contracted 1,827 3,636 1,781 3,590

(a) Capital commitments at the end of the 
financial year, for which no provision has 
been made, are as follows:

(b) Future minimum rentals payable under 
non-cancellable operating leases are as 
follows:

Group 2016 
£000’s

 2015  
£000’s

Future minimum rentals payable:

Within one year 
In the second to fifth years inclusive

870 
644

1,215 
1,054

1,514 2,269

Authority 2016 
£000’s

 2015  
£000’s

Future minimum rentals payable:

Within one year 
In the second to fifth years inclusive

38 
43

29 
8

81 37

(c) Operating Lease agreements where the 
Group is lessor:

The Group holds a proportion of its estate 
as investment properties, as disclosed in 
note 10, which are let to third parties. 
Future minimum rentals receivable under 
non-cancellable operating leases are as 
follows: 

2016 
£000’s

 2015  
£000’s

Not later than one year 2,662 2,885

After one year but not more than five years 4,382 4,401

After five years 6,702 6,208

13,746 13,494
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23. PENSION SCHEMES
The Authority participates in a number of 
pension schemes of the defined benefit 
type. The assets of these schemes are held 
in separate trustee administered funds and 
contributions are made in accordance with 
the advice of qualified actuaries.  

(a) i - Funded schemes – The Authority’s 
defined benefit schemes

The major single employer schemes are the 
Port of Tyne Authority Superannuation 
Pension Scheme (PTASPS) and the Port of 
Tyne Authority Docks Pension Scheme 
(PTADPS).

Contributions to these schemes are 
determined on the basis of triennial 
valuations using the projected unit method.  

The most recent actuarial valuations of the 
PTASPS and the PTADPS submitted to the 
regulator were as at 31 December 2013.  
These valuations show the PTASPS with a 
deficit of £3,314,000 and the PTADPS with 
a deficit of £1,357,000. These equate to a 
funding ratio for the schemes of 87% and 
83% respectively. The agreed recovery 
plans commit the Port to make deficit top 
up contributions for the PTASPS of 
£320,000 per annum until 2018, and 
£433,000 from 2019 to 2021 inflating with 
RPI; and for the PTADPS, £90,000 until 
2018, and £325,000 from 2019 to 2021, 
also inflating with RPI. 

There was £24,920 of outstanding 
contributions relating to the Port’s defined 
benefit pension schemes at the year end 
(2015: £30,067). 

At the year end, the schemes also owed the 
Port £64,924 (2015: £81,827), primarily in 
relation to the monthly pensioner payrolls 
which are processed by the Port and 
recharged to the schemes. 

The results of these calculations have been 
updated to 31 December 2016 by a 
qualified independent actuary. The major 
assumptions used by the actuary were as 
follows

2016 
PTASPS

2016 
PTADPS

2015 
PTASPS

2015 
PTADPS

Discount rate 2.60% 2.60% 3.75% 3.75%

Inflation (RPI) 

 (CPI) 

3.25% 

2.25% 

3.25% 

2.25% 

3.10% 

2.10% 

3.10%

2.10%

Rate of salary increase 1.80% 3.00% 1.65% 2.85%

Rate of pension increase 3.25% 2.25% 3.10% 2.10%

Life expectancy (yrs)

Retiring today Male  
  Female 

21.9

23.9 

21.9

23.9 

22.2 

24.4 

22.2

24.4

Retiring in 20 yrs Male  
  Female 

23.2 

25.4

23.2 

25.4 

23.5

25.9

23.5

25.9 
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23. PENSION SCHEMES 
CONTINUED...
(a) ii - Funded schemes – multi employer 
defined benefit scheme – Pilots National 
Pension Fund (PNPF)

The PNPF is a centralised multi-employer 
defined benefit scheme for non-associated 
employers. It provides benefits for employed 
and self-employed maritime pilots upon 
retirement and also on death before or after 
retirement.

The Fund is administered by a separate 
Trustee company which is legally separate 
from the Port. The Trustee Directors are 
required by law to act in the interests of all 
relevant beneficiaries and are responsible 
for the Fund’s investment policy and day to 
day administration.

The organisation is responsible for its own 
share of the total liabilities of the Fund, 
together with a proportionate share of the 
orphan liabilities of the Fund, i.e. those 
liabilities that cannot be attributed to 
another participating company. 

The most recent actuarial valuations of the 
fund submitted to the regulator was as at 31 
December 2013.  

The results of these calculations have been 
updated to 31 December 2016 by a 
qualified independent actuary. The major 
assumptions used by the actuary were as 
follows:

Following the most recent regulatory 
valuation, the organisation has also agreed 
with the Trustees of the PNPF to make 
£354,696 of deficit reduction payments  
in 2017 (2016 - £343,044).

The assets and liabilities of the schemes at 
31 December are:

PNPF 
£000’s

PTASPS 
£000’s

PTADPS 
£000’s

2016 
£000’s

2015 
£000’s

Equities 1,319 6,856 3,090 11,265 10,174

Government bonds 1,296 3,051 215 4,562 3,564

Corporate bonds 2,544 3,556 2,248 8,348 7,653

Property - 4,127 1,310 5,437 4,894

Index linked bonds - 9,894 - 9,894 8,567

Other 2,599 806 758 4,163 4,736

Fair value of scheme assets 7,758 28,290 7,621 43,669 39,588

Present value of funded 
defined benefit obligations

 
(12,824)

 
(31,979)

 
(12,206)

 
(57,009)

 
(49,302)

Deficit (5,066) (3,689) (4,585) (13,340) (9,714)

The pension plans have not invested in any 
Group properties or any other assets used 
by the Group.

2016  2015  

Discount rate 2.5% 3.5%

Inflation  RPI 
CPI

3.3% 
2.3%

3.0% 
2.0%

Rate of salary increase 3.8% 3.5%

Rate of pension increase 3.2%-3.7% 3.0%-3.5%

Life expectancy (yrs): 
Retiring today        Male 

Female

Retiring in 20 yrs   Male 
Female

 
22.2 
24.2

23.9 
26.1

 
22.1 
24.1

23.8 
26.0
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The amounts recognised in the Group 
income statement and in the Group 
Statement of Comprehensive Income are 
analysed as follows:

Taken to other comprehensive income PNPF 
£000’s

PTASPS 
£000’s

PTADPS 
£000’s

2016 
£000’s

2015 
£000’s

Actuarial (loss) / gain on the liabilities (1,692) (5,092) (2,325) (9,109) 2,488

Return on assets excluding interest income 810 3,937 361 5,108 (245)

Remeasurement gains and losses recognised 
in other comprehensive income

 
(882)

 
(1,155)

 
(1,964)

 
(4,001)

 
2,243

Movements in present value of  
defined benefit obligation

PNPF 
£000’s

PTASPS 
£000’s

PTADPS 
£000’s

2016 
£000’s

2015 
£000’s

At 1 January (11,521) (27,899) (9,882) (49,302) (51,333)

Current service cost - (175) (166) (341) (539)

Past service cost 5 - - 5 (540)

Interest cost (390) (1,005) (361) (1,756) (1,658)

Contributions by members - (3) (3) (8)

Actuarial gain/(loss) (1,692) (5,092) (2,325) (9,109) 2,488

Benefits paid 774 2,192 531 3,497 2,288

At 31 December (12,824) (31,979) (12,206) (57,009) (49,302)

Recognised in the income statement PNPF 
£000’s

PTASPS 
£000’s

PTADPS 
£000’s

2016 
£000’s

2015 
£000’s

Current service cost (net of members 
contributions) 

 
-

 
(175)

 
(166)

 
(341)

 
(539)

Prior service cost - - - - (540)

Admin charge (24) - - (24) (33)

Plan introductions and changes 5 - - 5 -

Recognised in arriving at operating profit (19) (175) (166) (360) (1,112)

Net interest on defined benefit  
pension plan obligation

 
(147)

 
(94)

 
(93)

 
(334)

 
(377)

Total recognised in the 
income statement

 
(166)

 
(269)

 
(259)

 
(694)

 
(1,489)
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Movements in fair value of plan assets PNPF 
£000’s

PTASPS 
£000’s

PTADPS 
£000’s

2016 
£000’s

2015 
£000’s

At 1 January 7,160 25,143 7,285 39,588 39,614

Interest income on scheme assets 243 911 268 1,422 1,281

Return on assets excluding interest income 810 3,937 361 5,108 (245)

Contributions by employer 343 491 235 1,069 1,251

Contributions by members - - 3 3 8

Benefits paid (774) (2,192) (531) (3,497) (2,288)

Expenses paid (24) - - (24) (33)

At 31 December 7,758 28,290 7,621 43,669 39,588

(b) Funded schemes - Former Registered 
Dock Workers Pension Scheme (FRDWPS):

A number of Port of Tyne Authority 
employees have previously been members 
of the former Registered Dock Workers 
Pension Scheme. This is a national scheme 
providing defined benefits based on pay 
near retirement. The scheme was closed to 
future accrual on 31 August 2013. The 
contributions paid by the Authority are 
accounted for as a defined contribution 
scheme as the Authority is unable to 
identify its share of the assets and liabilities 
of this scheme on a consistent and 
reasonable basis as the FRDWPS does not 
provide for the allocation of assets and 
liabilities to participating employers.  

Following the closure to future accrual in 
2013, the Authority will make no further 
employer contributions in to this scheme. 
As part of member augmentations offered 
as part of the 2013 closure to future 
accrual, the Authority committed to paying 
an additional £11,984 per annum from 
2013 to 2016.

At the date of the most recent actuarial 
valuation of the entire scheme (5 April 
2013) there was a deficit of £11.0m relative 
to the fund’s technical provisions, 
corresponding to a funding ratio of 98.6%. 
The recovery plan within this valuation, and 
as agreed with sponsoring employers, 
assumes that the deficit will be eliminated 
within 5 years solely through expected 
investment returns of 0.6% above gilts.  
Given that this is a national scheme, of 
which Port of Tyne is only a small 
contributor, then at the current time it is 
considered that the potential future impact 
of this scheme on the Port of Tyne is likely 
to be minimal.

(c) Funded schemes – defined contribution 
schemes

The Group operates and participates in a 
number of defined contribution schemes for 
which the charge for the year was £618,702 
(2015 – £653,679).

There were £101,961 outstanding 
contributions at the end of the year relating 
to these defined contribution schemes 
(2015 – £379,807). The large year end 
balance in the prior year was due to a 
number of individuals who left as part of the 
restructuring exercise in December 2015 
opting to make contributions into the 
scheme. All Employer contributions were 
paid over in the month following the period 
to which they relate.

(d) Unfunded arrangements

The Authority has commitments for 
unfunded pension liabilities in respect of 
former employees. The charge for the year 
was £8,610 (2015 – £7,888). 

23. PENSION SCHEMES 
CONTINUED...
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24. RESERVES

Profit and loss account

This records cumulative profit and loss.

Non distributable reserves

This reserve records any excess of fair 
value over depreciated historic cost for 
investment properties.

25. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT  
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to 
operating cash flows

2016 
£000’s  

 2015  
£000’s

Group operating profit 843 637

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 6,382 9,166

Release of grants and capital contributions (note 5) (454) (445)

Release of relocation contribution (note 5) (157) (157)

(Increase) / decrease in stocks (268) 28

Decrease in debtors 898 7,870

(Decrease) / increase in creditors (6,307) 2,866

Corporation Tax paid (271) (1,425)

Non cash element of pension charge (390) (139)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 276 18,401

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015 

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Cash 378 136 19 36

Bank overdrafts (note 15) (250) (88) (250) -

Cash and cash equivalents 128 48 (231) 36
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Group 
2016  

£000’s

Group 
2015 

£000’s

Authority 
2016 

£000’s

Authority  
2015 

£000’s

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at 
amortised cost

Other debtors (note 13)

 

1,399

 

1,011

 

1,381

 

993

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Loans (note 17) 36,250 20,500 36,250 20,500

Finance leases (notes 15, 16) 46 60 44 57

Trade creditors 2,035 5,829 1,521 5,479

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The Authority made sales of £nil (2015 
£57k) to Port of Tyne Wood Pellet Limited, a 
joint venture in which it has a 50% share. 
The amounts in the prior year related to 
professional fees which were incurred on a 
pass through basis. 

Sales are intended to be settled on normal 
commercial terms, and are included within 
the year end debt due from the JV of £618k 
(2015 – £618k).

The key management personnel are 
considered to be those Directors listed on 
page 20 of the Report of the Board.

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Port of Tyne currently makes, or in due 
course may be required to make, 
contributions to two industry wide defined 
benefit pension schemes which have 
various funding levels.  The Port’s ability to 
control these schemes is limited and 
therefore any impact on the Port’s future 
cash flows and cost base from these 
schemes is uncertain.  Further details on 
these schemes are set out in note 23, 
sections (a)ii and (b).

27. OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Group and parent entity enters into 
operating lease arrangements for the hire of 
buildings and plant and equipment as these 
arrangements are a cost effective way of 
obtaining the short term benefits of these 
assets. The Group lease rental expense is 
disclosed in note 5 and the future Group 
and entity commitments under these 
arrangements are disclosed in note 18. 
There are no other material off-balance 
sheet arrangements. 
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30. POST BALANCE SHEET 
EVENTS
In March 2017 the Port of Tyne Authority created a new subsidiary 
Howdon Green Energy Park Limited, in relation to the proposed 
gasification business. The Port of Tyne Authority has an 88% 
shareholding in this entity, with the remaining 12% owned by two 
private individuals.  

31. CONTROLLING PARTY
Control of the Port of Tyne Authority is 
vested in the Board of Directors.
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